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NK\JaZZd^\ErJLW]^^_JbQLLQ^`JhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YV 

iMNOOPiJOFPIq 

�QEEQnPJERyRm�mPR 

OHsG{'?JIs??sKHJs?JGKJEIAKMEDJ?G@HEHG?JF?J?GLKFFD?JFHHJGsGsvEH?J?KJGLE{JIF{JFEFHJJ@FJsFFsHxJFGFHEIsGt 
AED?KHFFtJFHHJADKJE??sKHFFJFs}E?w 

No\J_E]JrELQ[`JE_EbE`eLJhdY[YFGinJ`]Wr^EnJTFVJZkRRTPOJZ^EJTkGNOHU^YVJiMNOOPi 
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qmjJzmEQrPJm>m�mPREJDpDsEJJLEFHsHxJJKFFKMEHJ|{JFJHE?GDsAGsKHJKJJEFGLJqE{JzE?sxHJmFEIEHG? 
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[HOkFViJROHJGNYJHYXOMTGUOFJORJOkHJMNTHGYH\JWNYMcJ]ELJURJIOkJT[HYYJTFVJGNYFJkiYJGNY 

SOkiYJOFJIOkHJZWJOHJGNYJiGIPUiGJOFJIOkHJSOcUPYJVYXUMYJGOJiU[FJIOkHJFTSYq\ 

jE? 

72324
 



LU[FTGkHYnJ]YTVJORJWNTHGYHJLMNOOP
 

LU[FTGkHYnJZHYiUVYFGJORJGNYJZOTHVJORJeHkiGYYi
 

rTGY 96;<86B8C; 

eNTFcJIOk\ 

42324
 



EFGHIJKJLMNJNOPQQRJSTUQHGJVWHXJYZF[
 
LMNOPQRSMOpSqPrstuvturwx 

aLc`MJqSEqJVNJb{J|SbbpYMLJeSE}EL`Nn
 

\]JV^_S`ESJ_a`^bScdESJe_fJQg 
hiFTJjkGPlJKk\mn 

yz{|POp}~��}M�P|pMN{�N�PR�pMNpP|p�Np�p}O 
MQO~{|��p|P�M�pP�|{�PO~pPS|{RPS{�� 

�p�Q�� 

K]JLEoJMbSpJN`_`EJSEqbS` 

V_Sr 

qHQsZXTJWJXZHTOGJaSYJQHJtTuJRZF[ 

GQJGPTJvQfGJHTOTFGJLTtJMQH[ 

NGWGTJNOPQQRJSTUQHGJVWHXJgQHJGPT 

OPWHGTHJfOPQQRJeNTT 

PGGUfwxxHTUQHGOWHXf]FIfTX]yQsxn] 

eVPWHGTHJfOPQQRfJOQvURTGZFyJITWH 
QFTJtZRRJFQGJITGJPWsTJWJNOPQQR 
STUQHGJVWHXJQHJRZF[JGQJQFT]JqRTWfT 

GIUTJzaSYJZfJFQGJWsWZRWuRTzJZFJGPT 

fUWOTJUHQsZXTXn] 

����qrs�tQO~{|��pSPu~M|Op|Ps}~{{�
 

~OORNqttSMOM��vNpS�w{xt|pR{|O}M|S�R~Ry 

��NO�Szxrrrrrrs{x|r}vpM|zurws}}|pMOp|pR{|Ozw}M��}~p}~p 

Szw}p�|{���p�Ozw}Mxw}�MNNN��pzw}�|pp�Q�}~zw}MOOp�SM�}p 

zw}NQNRp�N�{�Nzw}OpM}~p|�QM�zw}OpM}~p|OQ|�{xp|zw}NOM�� 
}{Q�ONzw}~N�{�}{�R�pOp|Nzw}vx�Ltzw}vx�tr�zw}|xsu� 
zw}�pRzw}�MpRzw}|pwp�ONzw}�vNMMzw}�vNpN�MOzw}p�p�� 

Ltzw}p�p��tr�zw}p�p�s}�zw}Q��p�w~OpSzw 

12321
 

https://data.nysed.gov/reportcard.php?instid=800000075840&year=2017&createreport=1&allchecked=1&enrollment=1&avgclasssize=1&freelunch=1&attendance=1&suspensions=1&teacherqual=1&teacherturnover=1&staffcounts=1&hsnoncompleters=1&38ELA=1&38MATH=1&48SCI=1&lep=1&naep=1&regents=1&nysaa=1&nyseslat=1&elemELA=1&elemMATH=1&elemSci=1&unweighted=1


EFGHIJKJLHMNHOPPJQMRSHTJUMSVP
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9:7<=J>J?F@GJABHFGEHIJ<<97<9:7<= 

LWXUWEYYJQXZ[W\J]^[WQEWJUX[_Y 

CDFDHJDEJFEGEHG@IFAGJDDKLEHJFHHJMNCOPQIFAGJDDKLEHJRJFDGEDJ@RJDD4@JDH456JCD7B4EGEJGJEJGF84E@JBDD9KHEH6 
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>EJBEDEDD7FHREJHFGFJK@JHDGJF9FK4F84EJ85J?AGA@GJ<@G;JB4EF@EJ@GFGEJGJK@JKHJGJEJ4F@GJRD4A7HJFHHJABHFGEJ85 

MD9E78EDJ<@G6 
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EDRA@EHJ@ABBDDGJFHH 
GAKHFHREJDH 
R4F@@DDD7 
7FHFGE7EHG 
KHR4AHKHGJGJEJA@EJDE 
HFGFJEDDJ4E@@DHJB4FH 
HE9E4DB7EHGJFHH 
K7B4E7EHGFGKDH6 
=DKHRKBF4@JFHH 
HEBFDG7EHGJRJFKD@ 
HD<J@BEHHJ‟7†JDE 
GJEKDJGK7EJBDD9KHKHG 
GEFRJED@J<KGJ 
KH@GDARGKDHF4 
RDFRJKHG6JAJEJ․EFH 
DEJ@RJDD4JFHH 
OKDERGDDJDEJ@ABBDDG 
@ED9KRE@JFHF45LE 
@GAHEHGJHFGFJ<EEC456 
?EFDHKHGJ@BERKF4K@G@ 
JF9EJG<DJ4EFHED@ 
GF@CEHJ<KGJ 
EHJFHRKHG 
KH@GDARGKDHF4J‣AF4KG5; 
RADDKRA4A7 
HE9E4DB7EHGJFHH 
F@@E@@7EHG@6JAJE 
@RJDD4JJF@JJKDEHJ@GFEE 
GDJD9ED@EEJFHH 
EHJFHREJGJEJ4KGEDFR5 
KHGED9EHGKDHJBDDGDF76 
IJAJEJ@RJDD4JJF@ 
JKDEHJFHHKGKDHF4 
7KHH4EJ@RJDD4 
GEFRJED@JGDJBDD9KHE 
FHHKGKDHF4J4EFDHKHG 

?4GE8DFJ>JCCJF‡;J•;JDD GK7EJEDDJ@GAHEHG@; ?RFHE7 ‟”IJ‟‟†I;7† KHR4AHKHGJBDD9KHKHG MN@JQ„F7J@RDDE@ KRJADF4 MDGJBEG ?K9KHGJQH9KDDH7EHG HDA84EJ84DRCJDEJQ?? < F;‟†JDDJF8D9E”I KHJF44JGDFHE@6 
8‟†I=7† 
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AJDDAGJ
 
ADFHEJ;JF@BO@” 
Q??IJ<7†I<‟† 
BFGJIJ<7†I<‟† 

ADFHEJ8JF@BO@” 
Q??IJ<‟†I:7† 
BFGJIJ<‟†I:7† 

ADFHEJ=JF@BO@” 
Q??IJ:7†I:‟† 
BFGJIJ:7†I:‟† 
@RKEHREIJ‡‟†I•7† 

ADFHEJDJF@BO@” 
?4GE8DFJ>JCCJF‡;J•;JDD 
‟”IJ:‟†I‡7† 
?K9KHGJQH9KDDH7EHG 
F;‟†JDDJF8D9E”I 
•7†I•‟† 

K7B4E7EHGFGKDHJDE 
DADJ7A4GKI5EFDJ@RJDD4 
K7BDD9E7EHGJB4FH; 
@HKG5JK@JGFCKHGJF 
@GDFGEGKRJFHH 
GFDGEGEHJFBBDDFRJ 
GD<FDHJEH@ADKHGJGJK@ 
GDF4J<K44J8EJ7EGJHE„G 
5EFD6JADJFRRD7B4K@J 
GJK@;J@HKG5JK@ 
FH‥A@GKHGJGJEJ@RJDD4E@ 
BDDGDF7JA@KHGJGJE 
ED44D<KHGJGJDEE 
4E9ED@IJBDDEE@@KDHF4 
HE9E4DB7EHG; 
RADDKRA4A7;JFHH 
KH@GDARGKDHF4J@ABBDDG6 

?JHE<45JK7B4E7EHGEH 
F@@E@@7EHGJ@5@GE7; 
>44A7KHFGE;JGJFG 
7EF@ADE@JEFRJ 
@GAHEHG:@JBDDGDE@@ 
GD<FDH@JBDDEKRKEHR5 
DHJFJ@GFHHFDHI85I 
@GFHHFDHJ8F@K@JEDD 
8DGJJKHGEDK7 
F@@E@@7EHG@JFHH 
GJDDAGJDAGJGJE 
@RJDD4J5EFDJDHJF44 
DEGA4FD45J@RJEHA4EH 
F@@E@@7EHG@JKH 
R4F@@E@6JAJE 
E„BFH@KDHJDEJKHGEDK7 
F@@E@@7EHG@J@RJDD4 
<KHEJF44D<@JGEFRJED@ 
FHHJ4EFHED@JGD 
8EHRJ7FDCJBDDGDE@@ 
FHHJRDH@K@GEHG45JA@E 
HFGFJFRDD@@JGJE 
@RJDD4JGDJKHEDD7 
KH@GDARGKDH6J 

PADJJKGJJ@RJDD4J@KGE 
JF@J7D9EHJGDJFJ8DFHH 
HE<JEFRK4KG5…JGJEJHE< 
@BFREJBDD9KHE@ 
FHHKGKDHF4J@BFRE@JEDD 
KH@GDARGKDHJFHHJ@GFGE 
DEJGJEJFDGJ4F8J@BFRE 
EDDJ@RKEHREJR4F@@E@6J>G 
K@J8EGGEDJE‣AKBBEHJEDD 
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KH@GDARGKDHJEDDJF44 
@RJD4FD@;JF4DHGJ<KGJ 
KHGED9EHGKDHJ@ED9KRE@ 
EDDJDADJ@GAHEHG@J<KGJ 
HK@F8K4KGKE@JFHHJGJD@E 
<JDJ7F5JHEEH 
FHHKGKDHF4JFRFHE7KR 
@ABBDDG6J 

AJEJJKGJJ@RJDD4JJF@ 
7D9EHJGDJFJRDI 
BDKHRKBF4J7DHE4; 
<JKRJJF44D<@JEDD 
FHHKGKDHF4JGK7E 
HE9DGEHJGDJRDFRJKHG 
GEFRJED@;JEH@ADKHG 
KH@GDARGKDHJK@ 
HKEEEDEHGKFGEHJFHH 
4E@@DH@JFDEJGKEDEHJGD 
7EEGJGJEJHEEH@JDEJF44 
@RJD4FD@6J 

ADJEH@ADEJGJFGJ<E 
HERDEF@EJGJEJHA78ED 
DEJ@GAHEHG@J<JDJFDE 
BEDEDD7KHGJEFDJ8E4D< 
BDDEKRKEHR5JKHJ:7<=I 
<D;JGJEJ@RJDD4JK@ 
GFCKHGJGJEJED44D<KHG 
7EF@ADE@IJ 

IJAJEJ․EFHJDEJ@RJDD4 
<K44JHE9DGEJGJDEE 
JDAD@J<EEC45JGD 
FHF45LKHG; 
D9ED@EEKHG;JFHH 
7DHKGDDKHGJ>?JHFGFJDE 
F44J@GAHEHG@JKHJQ?? 
FHHJ7FGJE7FGKR@; 
KHR4AHKHGJ‧@GAHEHG@ 
<KGJJHK@F8K4KGKE@ JFHH 
@GAHEHG@J<JDJFDE 
R4F@@KEKEHJF@ 
‧ERDHD7KRF445 
HK@FH9FHGFGEH; JF@ 
GJE@EJ@A8GDDAB@JFDE 
KHJHEEHJDEJRDHGKHAF4 
FRFHE7KRJ@ABBDDG6 
IJQFRJJBDKHRKBF4; 
F4DHGJ<KGJJGJE 
RJFKDBED@DH@JDEJGJE 
Q??JFHHJ7FGJE7FGKR@ 
HEBFDG7EHG@J<K44 
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?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 
: 

AJEJ7F„K7A7 
BEDREHGFGEJDE 
@GAHEHG@ 
HE7DH@GDFGKHGJ‧ FD 
CE4D<J=DDEKRKEHR5 JDH 
MN@JE„F7@J<K44J8EJF@ 
ED44D<@I 

ADFHEJ; 
Q??IJ:‟† 
BFGJIJ‡‟† 

ADFHEJ8 
Q??IJ:7† 
BFGJIJ‡7† 

ADFHEJ= 
Q??IJ<‟† 
BFGJIJ:‟† 
@RKEHREIJ=† 

ADFHEJD 
?4GE8DFJ>JCCJF‡;J•;JDD 
‟”IJ<‟† 
?K9KHGJQH9KDDH7EHG 
F;‟†JDDJF8D9E”IJ‟† 

ADFHEJ;JF@BO@” 
Q??IJ•‟† 
BFGJIJ‟7† 

ADFHEJ8JF@BO@” 
Q??IJ•7† 
BFGJIJ•‟† 

ADFHEJ=JF@BO@” 
Q??IJ‡‟† 
BFGJIJ•7† 
@RKEHREIJ<‟† 

ADFHEJDJF@BO@” 
?4GE8DFJ>JCCJF‡;J•;JDD 
‟”IJ:‟† 
?K9KHGJQH9KDDH7EHG 
F;‟†JDDJF8D9E”IJ:7† 

MN@JQ„F7J@RDDE@ MDGJBEG 

HE9DGEJ:7JJDAD@JBED 
<EECJEFRJJGD 
KH@GDARGKDHF4 
RDFRJKHGJ<KGJJFJEDRA@ 
DHJ@ABBDDGKHG 
GEFRJED@J<KGJJ4E@@DH 
B4FHHKHG;J4E@@DH 
HE4K9ED5JFHH 
R4F@@DDD7 
7FHFGE7EHG6 
IJ@HKG5JJF@JJKDEH 
FHHKGKDHF4J7KHH4E 
@RJDD4JGEFRJED@JGD 
BDD9KHEJFHHKGKDHF4 
4EFDHKHGJGK7EJEDD 
@GAHEHG@6JAJEJ8AHGEG 
F4@DJ@ABBDDG@ 
BDD9KHKHGJHDA84E 
84DRC@JDEJQ??JEDDJF44 
GDFHE@JFE„BFHHEH 
EDD7J;GJJGDFHEJDH45” 
FEDD7J‟:JGD 
<<:7KHAGE@JHFK45JDE 
QHG4K@JJ?FHGAFGE 
?DG@JKH@GDARGKDH” 
@HKG5JGEFRJED@JFHH 
RDFRJE@JFDE 
RDHGKHAKHGJGDJ8AK4H 
CD77DHJCDDE 
F4KGHEH;J9EDGKRF445 
F4KGHEH;JDKGDDDA@JFHH 
EHGFGKHGJRADDKRA4FJKH 
7FGJE7FGKR@JFHH 
QHG4K@JJ?FHGAFGE 
?DG@;JKHR4AHKHGJGJE 
HE9E4DB7EHGJFHH 
AGK4KLFGKDHJDEJ>?@JGD 
HDK9EJ@GAHEHG 
4EFDHKHG6 

@HKG5JGEFRJED@J<K44J8E 
DE‣AKDEHJGDJJD4H 
DEGA4FD45J@RJEHA4EH 
DEEKREJJDAD@JEDD 
KHHK9KHAF4KLEH 
GAGDDKHGJHADKHG 
E9EHKHGJFHHJ<EECEHH 
JDAD@JGDJEH@ADEJF44 
@GAHEHG@JFDE 
FRFHE7KRF445 
BEDEDD7KHGJFGJDD 
F8D9EJGDFHEJ4E9E4 
CD77DHJCDDE 
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@GFHHFDH@6
 

QFRJJBDKHRKBF4;JF4DHG 
<KGJJGJEJRJFKDBED@DH@ 
DEJGJEJQ??JFHH 
7FGJE7FGKR@ 
HEBFDG7EHG@J<K44 
HE9DGEJ:7JJDAD@JBED 
<EECJEFRJJGD 
KH@GDARGKDHF4 
RDFRJKHGJ<KGJJFJEDRA@ 
DHJ@ABBDDGKHG 
GEFRJED@J<KGJJ4E@@DH 
B4FHHKHG;J4E@@DH 
HE4K9ED5JFHH 
R4F@@DDD7 
7FHFGE7EHG6 

@HKG5JGEFRJED@JFHH 
RDFRJE@JFDE 
RDHGKHAKHGJGDJ8AK4H 
CD77DHJCDDE 
F4KGHEH;J9EDGKRF445 
F4KGHEH;JDKGDDDA@JFHH 
EHGFGKHGJRADDKRA4FJKH 
7FGJE7FGKR@JFHH 
QHG4K@JJ?FHGAFGE 
?DG@;JKHR4AHKHGJGJE 
HE9E4DB7EHGJFHH 
AGK4KLFGKDHJDEJKHGEDK7 
F@@E@@7EHG@JGDJHDK9E 
@GAHEHG 
4EFDHKHG6=DDEKRKEHR5 
GD<FDH@J@BKDF4EH 
@GFHHFDH@J<K44J8E 
DEGA4FD45JF@@E@@EHJGD 
EH@ADEJ@GAHEHG@JFDE 
FBBDDFRJKHGJ7F@GED56 

>HJGJEJ:7<8I<=J@RJDD4 
5EFD;JD:†JDE 
@GAHEHG@JGDE<JFG 
4EF@GJGJDEEJDEFHKHG 
4E9E4@6J․D<E9ED;J<E 
HKHJHDGJ7EEGJGJE 
@ERDHHJBFDGJDEJGJK@ 
GDF46JBEJFDE; 
JD<E9ED;JB4EF@EH 
<KGJJGJEJBDDGDE@@JDAD 
@GAHEHG@JJF9EJ7FHE 
FHHJ<K44;JGJEDEEDDE; 
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?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 
‡ 

?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 
• 

?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 
‟ 

?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 
; 

?KGEDFR5I 
?GJ4EF@GJD7†JDE 
@GAHEHG@J<JDJDEREK9E 
?E9E4EHJ?KGEDFR5 
>HGED9EHGKDH@J<K44 
GDD<JGJDEEJDEFHKHG 
4E9E4@JFRDD@@JGJE 
5EFD6 

?GJ4EF@GJD7†JDE 
@GAHEHG@J8E4D<J4E9E4 
@JF•GJJGDFHE”J<K44 
GDD<J;J4E9E4@JFRDD@@ 
GJEJ5EFD6 

FDAHHGF84E@I 
?GJ4EF@GJD7†JDE 
@GAHEHG@J<K44JBF@@ 
GJEKDJFDAHHGF84E 
BDE@EHGFGKDH 
FRRDDHKHGJGDJDAD 
@RJDD4E@J@JFDEH 
DA8DKRJ85JGJEJEHHJDE 
@A77EDJ?RFHE75 
EFRJJ5EFD6 

>HGEDHF4J?@@E@@7EHG@ MDGJBEG 

>HGEDHF4JFA8DKR@ BEG 

RDHGKHAEJGJEJEEEDDG@ 
BAGJKHJB4FREJEDDJ:7<8I 
<=JKHJGJEJABRD7KHG 
@RJDD4J5EFD;JF@ 
ED44D<@I 

IJ@GK4KLEJHFGFJEDD7 
BDKDDJFRFHE7KRJ5EFD@ 
FHHJGJDDAGJDAGJEFRJ 
GDK7E@GEDJGDJ8EGGED 
FHF45LE 
RJFDFRGEDK@GKR@JDE 
@GAHEHG@J<JDJHKHJHDG 
7EEGJGJEKDJGDD<GJ 
GDF4@JFHHJBDD9KHE 
GFDGEGEHJKHGED9EHGKDH 
F@JHEEHEH6 
IJFE9K@EJGDFKHKHGJKH 
GJEJ??>J@5@GE7JEDD 
GEFRJED@J8F@EHJDH 
HFGFJEDD7JBDKDDJ5EFD@ 
RDDDE@BDHHKHGJGD 
EFRJJGEFRJED:@ 
BFDGKRA4FDJ@GDEHGGJ@ 
FHHJBD@@K84EJFDEF@JDE 
K7BDD9E7EHG6 
IJ=DKDDKGKLEJ@7F44ED 
GDDAB@JDEJ@GAHEHG@ 
FHHJDADJ7D@G 
E„BEDKEHREH 
KHGED9EHGKDHJGEFRJED@ 
EDDJGJEJ@GAHEHG@J<JD 
HEEHJGJEJ7D@G 
@ABBDDG6 
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8 

?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 

?RFHE7 
KRJADF4 
= 

gaJ\MJpSiOJmMHOJSoSTOmloJNMSVP MD 

GMJSTTj 

KaJ\MJpSiOJmMHOJSoSTOmloJNMSVP MD 

GMJSTTj 

kaJXWU[ecl[QcXe[_JUX[_Y 

gh`ij`kJLHMNHOPPJQMRSHTJ[GGSlFmOFGJMnJXHNSFlmSGlMFSVJUMSVP 

PDGFHKLFGKDHF4 
ADF4 

@BERKF4JQHARFGKDH 
CD7B4KFHREI 
D7I<77†JDEJ>Q=@ 
<K44J8EJABIGDIHFGE 
FDDJHDGJD9EDHAE” 
F@JDEJMD9E78ED 
<‟GJJFHHJ‪AHE 
<‟GJJEFRJJ5EFD6 

PDGJADF4J< D7I<77†JDEJGJE 
@ED9KRE@JDEEEDEHJGD 
@GAHEHG@J<K44 
7FGRJJGJEJ@ED9KRE@ 
@BERKEKEHJDHJGJEKD 
>Q=@JF@JDE 
MD9E78EDJ<‟GJ 
FHHJ‪AHEJ<‟GJ6 

BEF@ADEJ@@EHJGD
 
Q9F4AFGEJ=DDGDE@@
 

>HGEDHF4JFERDDH@
 

ADF4JIJBEGJDDJMDG 
BEG 

MDGJBEG 

>EJMDGJBEG; 
OE@RDK8EJQEEDDG@ 
@RJDD4JBK44JAFCE 

BJK4EJGJEJEKD@GJJF4E 
DEJGJK@JGDF4J<F@ 
7EGJFD‟†JFHHJDD† 
<EDEJABJGDJHFGEJ85 
MD9E78EDJ<‟GJ 
FHHJ‪AHEJ<‟GJ 
DE@BERGK9E45”;J<E 
EE44J@JDDGJDHJGJE 
@ERDHH 
RD7BDHEHG6 
AJEDEEDDE;JGJE 
@RJDD4J<K44 
K7B4E7EHGJGJE 
ED44D<KHGJBDDGDF7 
RJFHGE@JKHJGJE 
RD7KHGJ5EFDI 

IJ=DD9KHE 
>HGEGDFGEH 
CD44F8DDFGK9E 
GEFRJKHGJEDD 
JK@GDD5JR4F@@E@JFG 
DADJ7KHH4EJ@RJDD4 
@KGE 
IJ@GK4KLEJFGEHRKE@ 
F@@KGHEHJGDJA@J85 
GJEJME<JNDDCJCKG5 
OEBFDG7EHGJDE 
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PDGJADF4J:
 

PDGJADF4J‡
 

OK@RKB4KHEI 
AJEJDAGI@RJDD4 
@A@BEH@KDHJDFGE 
EDDJF44J@GAHEHG@ 
FHHJEDDJ@GAHEHG@ 
<KGJJHK@F8K4KGKE@ 
<K44J8EJ4E@@JGJFH 
<7†JF@JDEJ‪AHE 
<‟GJJEFRJJ5EFD6 

?GGEHHFHREI 
D‟†JF9EDFGEJHFK45 
FGGEHHFHREJDD 
GDEFGEDJFHHJEE<ED 
GJFHJ<7†JDE 
@GAHEHG@ 
RFGEGDDKLEHJF@ 
RJDDHKRF445JF8@EHG 
F@JDEJ‪AHEJ<‟GJ 
EFRJJ5EFD6 

>HGEDHF4JFERDDH@ BEG 

?GGEHHFHRE MDGJBEG DERDDH@ 

QHARFGKDHJEDD 
@BEERJI4FHGAFGE 
@ED9KRE@ 
IJ>HRDEF@E 
RD44F8DDFGKDHJFHH 
FH9DRFR5JEDD 
@GAHEHG@J<KGJ 
@BERKF4JR4F@@ 
B4FRE7EHG@ 

>HJ:7<8I<=;JGJE 
F9EDFGEJHFK45 
FGGEHHFHREJ<F@ 
D‡†;JFHHJGJE 
RJDDHKRJF8@EHRE 
DFGEJ<F@J::†6 
AJEDEEDDE;JKHJ:7<=I 
<D;JGJEJ@RJDD4J<K44 
KHRDEF@EJKG@JEEEDDG@ 
GDJI 

IJBFCEJHFK45JRF44@ 
GDJBFDEHG@JDE 
@GAHEHG@JGJFGJFDE 
F8@EHGJDDJ4FGEJDHJF 
BFDGKRA4FDJ@RJDD4 
HF56 
IJ=DD9KHEJBD@KGK9E 
FGGEHHFHRE 
KHREHGK9E@ 
KHR4AHKHGJGDF4I 
@EGGKHGJFHH 
DE<FDH@J<KGJJEFRJ 
@GAHEHG6 
>HEHGKE5J@GAHEHG@ 
FGJDK@CJDEJRJDDHKR 
F8@EHGEEK@7 
GJDDAGJJRDAH@E4DD 
7EEGKHG@JFHH 
EFD45JDERDGHKGKDH 
DEJBD@@K84EJ8FDDKED@ 
GDJFGGEHHFHRE6 
IJOE9E4DB 

:23214
 



PDGJADF4J•
 

QHDD447EHGI 
‟77JFBB4KRFGKDH@ 
DEREK9EHJEDDJ;GJ 
GDFHEJ<KGJJF 
RDHEKD7EHJ<FKG4K@G 
DEJ‟7J@GAHEHG@J85 
‪AHEJ<‟GJJEFRJ 
5EFD6 

?9EDFGEJ@GAHEHG 
EHDD447EHGJ<K44J8E 
FGJ4EF@GJ=‟†JDEJGJE 
GDGF4JEHDD447EHG 
4K@GEHJDHJGJE 
@RJDD4:@JRJFDGEDJF@ 
DEJ‪AHEJ<‟GJJEFRJ 
5EFD6 

QHDD447EHG MDGJBEG FERDDH@ 

KHHK9KHAF4KLEH 
KHGEH@K9E 
FGGEHHFHRE 
RDHGDFRG@J<KGJ 
R4EFDJE„BERGFGKDH@ 
EDDJGJEJ@GAHEHG 
FHHJEF7K45 
7E78ED@6 

?4GJDAGJJGJK@JGDF4 
<F@JHDGJEA445J7EG 
F@JGJEJ@RJDD4JHKH 
HDGJJF9EJ‟77 
FBB4KRFGKDH@JEDD 
GJEJKHRD7KHGJ;GJ 
ADFHE;J<EJJFHJ‡:• 
FBB4KRFGKDH@JKHJDAD 
4DGGED5;JFH 
K7BDD9E7EHGJEDD7 
4F@GJ5EFD6J?@JF 
DE@A4G;JGJEJ;GJ 
ADFHEJK@JEA445 
EHDD44EHJEDDJGJE 
ABRD7KHGJ5EFD6J 

AK9EHJGJEJ@ARRE@@ 
DEJDADJDERDAKG7EHG 
EEEDDG@JEDDJ@D4KH 
FBB4KRFHG@;J<EJ<K44 
RDHGKHAEJFHH 
EHJFHREJDAD 
EEEDDG@JGDJEDRA@JDH 
@GAHEHG@JFHH 
EF7K4KE@JKHJDAD 
GFDGEG 
HEKGJ8DDJDDH@ 
<KGJKHJC@O@J<‡ 
FHHJ<;JGDJKHRDEF@E 
GJEJGDGF4JHA78ED 
DEJFBB4KRFGKDH@ 
DEREK9EHJKHJGDGF46 

AJEJ@ERDHH 
RD7BDHEHGJDEJGJK@ 
GDF4;JF9EDFGE 
@GAHEHGJEHDD447EHG 
FGJ4EF@GJ=‟†JDE 
GDGF4JEHDD447EHG; 
<F@J7EG6 

@GAHEHGJFEGEHGKDHI 
@GAHEHGJDEGEHGKDH 
<K44J8EJGDEFGED 
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PDGJADF4J‟ GJFHJD7†JF@ 
F@@E@@EHJEDD7 
PRGD8EDJ<@GJGD 
‪AHEJ<‟GJJEFRJ 

QHDD447EHG 
FERDDH@ 

BEG 

5EFD6 

naJ\MJIMoJpSiOJmMHO NE@ 

MHNSFlmSGlMFSVJNMSVPJGMJSTTj 

gh`ij`kJLHMNHOPPJQMRSHTJ[GGSlFmOFGJMnJXHNSFlmSGlMFSVJUMSVP 

PDGFHKLFGKDHF4 
ADF4 

@GFEEJFEGEHGKDHI 
?GJ4EF@GJ=7†JDE 
GJEJ@RJDD4:@J@GFEE 
<JDJFDEJDEEEDEH 
DEHE<EH 
FGDEE7EHG@JEFRJ PDGJADF4J; 5EFDJ<K44JDEGADHJF@ 
E7B4D5EE@JKHJGJE 
ED44D<KHGJ5EFDJF@ 
F@@E@@EHJDH 
?AGA@GJ<@GJEFRJ 
5EFD6 

BEF@ADEJ@@EHJGD
 
Q9F4AFGEJ=DDGDE@@
 

@RJDD4JFERDDH@ 

ADF4JIJBEGJDDJMDG >EJMDGJBEG; 
BEG OE@RDK8EJQEEDDG@ 

@RJDD4JBK44JAFCE 

BEG
 

@HKG5J=DEB:@ 
BD@KGK9EJDE@BDH@E@ 
EDDJ@AD9E5 
‣AE@GKDH@JDE4FGEH 
GDJBDDEE@@KDHF4 
HE9E4DB7EHGJ<EDE 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


Board of Trustees 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and 
changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s June 30, 2017 financial statements, 
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 6, 
2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of June 30, 2017 is consistent, 
in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 28, 2018 on 
our consideration of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 

September 28, 2018
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


June 30, 
ASSETS 2018 2017 

CURRENT ASSETS
 Cash 
  Cash in escrow 
  Grants and other receivables 
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

1,451,831 $ 1,078,732$ 
75,179 75,141
238,387 215,912
108,626 17,081 

1,874,023 1,386,866 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 315,349 280,150 

TOTAL ASSETS 2,189,372 $ 1,667,016$ 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 93,438 $ 95,324 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 367,407 318,829
  Deferred revenue 27,601  -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 488,446 414,153 

NET ASSETS

  Unrestricted 1,700,926 1,252,863 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,700,926 1,252,863 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,189,372 $ 1,667,016 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 


YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


2018 2017 
Year ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and support:
  State and local per pupil
    operating revenue 
  Government grants 
  Contributions 
  Other income 

8,453,856$ 
327,507 
111,323 

37

6,468,035$ 
289,066
91,936

 37  

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 8,892,723 6,849,074 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 
    Special education 
  Management and general 
  Fundraising and special events 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

5,876,957 
2,054,632 
476,966 
36,105 

8,444,660 

4,797,062
1,349,163
441,351
33,120 

6,620,696 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 448,063 228,378 

Net assets at beginning of year 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

1,252,863 

1,700,926 $ 

1,024,485 

1,252,863 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 

Personnel services costs:

No. of 
Positions 

Regular 
Education 

Special 
Education 

Program Services 

Sub-total 

Year ended June 30, 2018 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising 
and special 

Management 
and 

events general Sub-total Total 

2017 

Total 

  Administrative staff personnel
  Instructional personnel
  Non-instructional personnel
Total salaries and wages

 7 
50 
23 
80 

$ 55,886 
  2,887,983 

           1,354,697 
 4,298,566 

$ 23,886 

887,974 
595,531 1,507,391 

$ 79,772 

3,775,957 
1,950,228 
5,805,957 

$ 28,571 

-
-
28,571 

$ 241,371 

-
-

241,371 

$ 

269,942 

-

-

269,942 

$ 349,714 
           3,775,957 
           1,950,228 
           6,075,899 

$ 315,905 
           3,074,256 

1,406,051 
4,796,212 Fringe benefits and payroll taxes

Retirement expenses
Accounting / audit services
Other purchased / professional / consulting services
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance 
Supplies and materials
Non-capitalized equipment / furnishings 
Staff development 
Marketing / recruitment 
Technology 
Office expense 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other

              801,729 

4,577 

-
      195,777 

1,042 
36,523 

              266,610 
15,926 
37,053 
58,667 
44,146 
44,978 
70,915 

448 

281,145 

1,605 

-60,196 
365 

12,807 

83,086 

5,109 
27,556 

19,110 

15,481 

                15,773 

24,868 

140 

1,082,874 

6,182 

-

              255,973 

1,407 
49,330 
349,696 

21,035 
64,609 
77,777 
59,627 
60,751 
95,783 

588 

5,329 

30 

-500 7 

243 
164 

33 

-
     165 

293 
299 471 

-

45,018 

257 21,100 
152,570 

59 

2,051 

1,431 

275 

2,451 

1,393 2,479 

2,526 

3,982 

3 

50,347 

287 

21,100 

153,070 

66 2,294 
1,595 

308 

2,451 
1,558 
2,772 
2,825 
4,453 

3 

           1,133,221 

6,469 
21,100 

              409,043 

1,473 
51,624 

        351,291 
21,343 
67,060 
79,335 
62,399 
63,576 

              100,236 

591 

888,464 

3,669 
20,500 
328,386 

2,722 
46,148 
200,790 

10,996 68,663 

60,990 
43,217 
48,415 
100,932 

592 

$ 5,876,957 $ 2,054,632 $ 7,931,589 $ 36,105 $ 476,966 $ 513,071 $ 8,444,660 $ 6,620,696 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


Year ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets 448,063 $ 228,378$ 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
    provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 100,236 100,932
      Loss on disposal of property and equipment 35,045 -
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables (22,475) (72,628)
        Prepaid expenses and other current assets (91,545) 45,852
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses (33,591) 6,867
        Accrued payroll and benefits 48,578 135,496
        Deferred revenue 27,601 (7,480) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 511,912 437,417 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchases of property and equipment (138,775) (142,589)
  Change in cash in escrow (38) (37) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (138,813) (142,626) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 373,099 294,791 

Cash at beginning of year 1,078,732 783,941 

CASH AT END OF YEAR 1,451,831 $ 1,078,732$ 

NON-CASH INVESTING AND OPERATING ACTIVITY
  Fixed asset additions included in accounts payable $ 31,705 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation that 
operates as a charter school in Brooklyn, New York.  On November 5, 2012 the Board of Regents of the 
University of the State of New York granted the Charter School a provisional charter valid for a term of five 
years and renewable upon expiration. On March 12, 2018, the Board of Regents of the University of the State 
of New York extended the provisional charter, and any amendment thereto, for a term of five years through 
June 30, 2023. 

Financial Statement presentation 
The financial statements of the Charter School have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The 
Charter School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of 
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 

These classes of net assets are defined as follows: 

Permanently restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be 
fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of the Charter School. The Charter School had no permanently 
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Temporarily restricted – Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the 
Charter School is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be 
fulfilled and removed by actions of the Charter School pursuant to those stipulations. The Charter School had 
no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

Unrestricted – The net assets over which the Governing Board has discretionary control to use in carrying on 
the Charter School’s operations in accordance with the guidelines established by the Charter School. The 
Board may designate portions of the current unrestricted net assets for specific purposes, projects or 
investment. 

Revenue and support recognition 
Revenue from state and local governments resulting from the Charter School’s charter status and based on the 
number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the Charter School 
when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable or requirements of the grants are met. 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the pledge is received and documented.   
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Contributions 
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily or permanently restricted support depending on 
the existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same year for a 
specific purpose is classified as unrestricted revenue. 

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York and are insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 at each institution. In the normal course of business, the cash 
account balances at any given time may exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not 
experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash.  

Cash in escrow
	
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  

The amount in escrow as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $75,179 and $75,141, respectively.   


Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of 
individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has 
used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-
line method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which 
range from three to seven years.  

Contributed services 
During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Charter School was located in a New York City 
Department of Education facility and utilized approximately 20,500 square feet at no charge. In addition, the 
Charter School receives contributed services from volunteers to serve on the Board of Trustees. The Charter 
School received transportation services, food supplies and services and certain office equipment from the local 
district. The Charter School was unable to determine a value for these services. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE A: THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, 
Cont’d 

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years 
ended June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2018 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. Management of the 
Charter School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it will not recognize any 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs were 
$79,335 and $60,990 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Other purchased/professional/consulting services 
Other purchased/professional/consulting services is made up of expenses related to financial management 
services as well as professional service expenses related to extra curricular activities of students such as clubs 
and athletics. 

Deferred revenue 

The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant,
	
at which time it is recognized as revenue. 


Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Comparatives for year ended June 30, 2017 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by 
functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived. 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through September 28, 2018, which is the date the financial statements are available to 
be issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as disclosed in Notes C, G, and I. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE B: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

2018 
June 30, 

2017 

Furniture and fixtures 
Computers and equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 

$ 

$ 

53,017 $ 
470,669 
206,253 

729,939 
414,590 

315,349 $ 

53,017 
419,960 
121,527 

594,504 
314,354 

280,150 

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $100,236 and $100,932 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 
2017, respectively.  

NOTE C: SCHOOL FACILITY 

The Charter School has entered into a verbal agreement with the New York City Department of Education for 
dedicated and shared space at P.S. 044 Marcus Garvey, a New York City Public School located at 432 Monroe 
Street, Brooklyn, New York. 

During 2016, the Charter School received approval from the New York City Department of Education for use 
of dedicated and shared space for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2018 at Brownsville Academy High 
School, a New York Public School located at 1150 East New York Ave, Brooklyn NY. 

During 2016, the Charter School entered into a forty-year lease for property located at 32 Lexington Avenue, 
Brooklyn, NY, commencing on the later of July 1, 2018 or the day the Landlord tenders possession to the 
Charter School, with the option for four renewal periods of five years each for a total potential term of sixty 
years. The lease called for an initial security deposit of $46,625 with subsequent increases upon completing 
certain milestones as defined in the agreement. No security deposit payment was ever made. In January 2018, 
the above-mentioned lease was terminated.  

During 2017, the Charter School entered into an agreement in connection with the above mentioned forty-year 
lease. The Charter School agreed to share in certain architectural and legal fees relating to the development of 
the premises. The Charter School was obligated to pay up to $50,000 of architectural fees and 50% of legal 
fees relative to this agreement. This lease was terminated in January 2018 and approximately $35,000 of 
previously capitalized architect fees were expensed. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE C: SCHOOL FACILITY, Cont’d. 


During August 2018, the Charter School entered into a sublease agreement with a related party, Friends of 
Northwest Brooklyn, for property located at 584 Driggs Avenue, Brooklyn, NY, commencing on the date on 
which the landlord’s work is substantially completed. A first amendment to sublease was signed in September 
2018. The thirty five-year lease calls for rent based on a fixed rent schedule provided in the sublease 
agreement, as well as annual escalation clauses, and any costs, expenses or other sums required to be paid 
under the sublease agreement.   

The future minimum payments on this agreement, through year 2053, are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

$ 1,156,000 
1,360,000 
1,387,000 
1,415,000 
1,444,000 
51,118,000 

$ 57,880,000 

NOTE D: OPERATING LEASE 

The Charter School leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring through August 
2019. The future minimum payments on these agreements are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 $ 13,092 
2020 2,182 

$ 15,274 

NOTE E: CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential 
claims. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE F: CONCENTRATIONS
	

At June 30, 2018, approximately 27% of grants and other receivables relate to certain grants due from the New 
York State Department of Education. At June 30, 2017 approximately 89% of grants and other receivables 
relate to certain grants due from the federal government. 

During the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 approximately 95% and 94% of total operating revenue and 
support came from per-pupil funding provided by New York State, respectively.  The per-pupil rate is set 
annually by the State based on the school district in which the Charter School’s students are located. 

NOTE G: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Charter School is related to Friends of Northwest Brooklyn (the “Organization”) through common 
management. The Organization granted $110,765 and $86,800 to the Charter School during the years ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  The donations are included in contributions on the statement of activities 
and changes in net assets. 

During August of 2018, the Charter School entered into a sublease with the Organization for property located at 
584 Driggs Avenue, Brooklyn, NY, as described in Note C. The lease signed between the Organization and a 
third party on June 29, 2018 is guaranteed by the Charter School. The thirty five-year lease calls for rent based 
on a fixed rent schedule commencing on the date on which the landlord’s work is substantially completed. The 
future minimum payments on this agreement, through year 2053, are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

$ 900,000 
918,000 
936,000 
955,000 
974,000 

40,311,000 

$ 44,994,000 

The facts exclude the Charter School from the provisions of accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America which would otherwise require consolidation with the Organization. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 


JUNE 30, 2018 

(With Comparative Totals for 2017) 


NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLAN 


Effective August 1, 2014, the Charter School began sponsoring a 403(b) retirement plan (the “Plan”) for its 
employees. All full-time employees of the Charter School are eligible to participate in the Plan. The Charter 
School has the opportunity to make a discretionary contribution to the Plan for employees who have achieved 
one year of service. Employees are fully vested upon receiving the contribution. There were no contributions 
to the Plan for either of the years ended June 30, 2018 or 2017. 

NOTE I: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In August 2018, the New York State Education Department (NYSED) notified the Charter School that it had 
over-allocated $40,537 in Title IIA funding to the Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2018.  NYSED 
will reduce the Charter School’s Title IIA funding for a period of up to five years to recoup the over-allocated 
funding. The Charter School has not accounted for this over-allocated funding as a liability as of June 30, 
2018. 
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 


REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
	



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

  
    

 
  

 

 
        

 
    

  
     

 
 

     
 

       
   

      
 

 
 

       
   

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

Board of Trustees 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and the related statements of activities and changes 
in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Unity Preparatory Charter School 
of Brooklyn’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Unity Preparatory Charter 
School of Brooklyn’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn in 
a separate letter dated September 28, 2018. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 

September 28, 2018
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September  28,  2018 
 	

Board of Trustees 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 
(the “Charter School”) as of June 30, 2018 and for the year then ended, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

•		Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely.

 •		Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

* * * * * 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management and the Board of Trustees and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Michelle Cain 
or Kate Welc. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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September 28, 2018
	

Board of Trustees 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

We have audited the financial statements of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn as of June 30, 2018 and 
for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2018. Professional standards 
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 10, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn solely for the purpose of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgement, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

We have provided our comments regarding control deficiencies and other matters noted during our audit in a 
separate letter to you. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn is included in Note A to the financial 
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting 
policies or their application during the year ended June 30, 2018.  No matters have come to our attention that would 
require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses and management and general expenses and the collectability of grants receivable. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they are reasonable in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Unity Preparatory Charter School 
of Brooklyn’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of the 
financial statements. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.  No such misstatements were identified during our audit. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were 
brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of the misstatements identified by 
us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are 
pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn, we 
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Unity Preparatory Charter 
School of Brooklyn’s auditors. 

* * * * * 
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Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kate Welc will be happy to meet 
with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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Annual Financial Statement Audit Report 

School Name: Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2018 

Primary District of Location 
(If NYC select NYC DOE): 

New York City Department of Education 

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: NYCSD #13 

School Fiscal Contact Name: Chris Doscher 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
School Fiscal Contact Phone: 

School Audit Firm Name: Mengel Metzger Barr & Co. LLP 
School Audit Contact Name: Michelle M. Cain 
School Audit Contact Email: 
School Audit Contact Phone: 

Audit Period: 2017-18 
Prior Year: 2016-17 

The following items are required to be included: 

1.) The independent auditor’s report on financial statements and notes.
�
2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
�
Expenses worksheets.
�
3.) Reports on internal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.
�

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
�
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
�
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
�
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.
�

Item If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A): 

Management Letter Included 

Management Letter Response N/A 

Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A 

Corrective Action Plan N/A 





         
     
     

 
    

   
 

 
   

  
   

 
    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

     
    

   
 

 
  

 

 
       

 
   

  
 

 

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn
 
Statement of Financial Position
 

as of June 30
 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 
Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 
Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2018 

1,527,010 
238,387 

-
108,626 

-
-

1,874,023 

315,349 
-
-
-

315,349 

2,189,372 

$ 

$ 

2017 

1,153,873 
215,912 

-
17,081 

-
-

1,386,866 

280,150 
-
-
-

280,150 

1,667,016 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 
Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES 
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 
Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

93,438 
367,407 

-
-
-

27,601 
-

488,446 

-
-
-
-
-

488,446 

$ 

$ 

95,324 
318,829 

-
-
-
-
-

414,153 

-
-
-
-
-

414,153 



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 1,700,926 
-
-

1,700,926 

$ 1,252,863 
-
-

1,252,863 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2,189,372 1,667,016 



         
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn
 
Statement of Activities
 

as of June 30
 

Unrestricted 

2018 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total 
2017 

Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 6,805,900 
1,480,967 

-
300,277 
194,220 

-
-

8,781,363 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 6,805,900 
1,480,967 

-
300,277 
194,220 

-
-

8,781,363 

$ 5,402,850 
900,401 

-
256,961 

-
6,757,101 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 5,876,957 
2,054,632 

-
7,931,589 

476,967 
36,105 

8,444,661 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 5,876,957 
2,054,632 

-
7,931,589 

476,967 
36,105 

8,444,661 

$ 4,797,062 
1,349,163 

-
6,146,225 

441,351 
33,120 

6,620,696 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 336,702 - 336,702 136,405 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 
Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ 37 
111,323 

-
-
-
-

111,360 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 37 
111,323 

-
-
-
-

111,360 

$ 37 
91,936 

-
-
-
-

91,973 

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
of Assets 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

448,062 

$ -

-

$ -

448,062 

$ -

228,378 

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ 1,252,863 
-

$ -
-

$ 1,252,863 
-

$ 1,024,485 
-

196,890 



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 1,700,926 $ - $ 1,700,926 $ 1,252,863 



         
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn
 
Statement of Cash Flows
 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 
Accounts Receivable 
Due from School Districts 
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 
Grant revenues 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 
Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 
Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

as of June 30 

2018 2017 

$ 448,063 
-

$ 228,378 

-
-

100,236 
(22,475) 

-

100,932 
(72,628) 

-
(91,545) 
(33,722) 

131 
48,578 

-

45,852 
5,148 
1,719 

135,496 
-
-

27,601 
-

(7,480) 
-

35,045 
-

-
-

$ 511,912 $ 437,418 

$ 

$ 

(138,775) 
(38) 

(138,813) 

$ 

$ 

(142,589) 
(37) 

(142,626) 

$ 
-

$ 
-

- -
$ - $ -

$ 

$ 

373,099 
1,078,732 
1,451,831 

$ 

$ 

294,792 
783,940 

1,078,732 



         
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn
 
Statement of Functional Expenses
 

as of June 30
 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 
OTHER 

No. of 
Positions 

7.00 
50.00 
23.00 
80.00 

Regular 
Education 

$ 
55,886 

2,887,982 
1,354,695 
4,298,563 

801,729 
4,576 

-
-
-

195,777 

-
1,042 

36,522 
-

266,751 
15,927 
36,913 
58,667 
44,146 

-
-

44,979 
70,915 
450 

Program Services 
Special 

Education 
Other 

Education 
$ $ 

23,886 -
887,974 -
595,531 -

1,507,391 -
281,145 -

1,605 -
- -
- -
- -

60,196 -

- -
365 -

12,807 -
- -

83,086 -
5,109 -

27,556 -
19,110 -
15,481 -

- -
- -

15,773 -
24,868 -
141 -

$ 

Total 

79,771 
3,775,957 
1,950,226 
5,805,954 
1,082,874 

6,181 
-
-
-

255,973 

-
1,407 

49,330 
-

349,837 
21,036 
64,469 
77,777 
59,627 

-
-

60,752 
95,783 
591 

2018 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

$ $ $ 
28,571 241,371 

- -
- -

28,571 241,371 
5,329 45,018 

30 257 
- -
- -
- 21,100 

500 152,570 

- -
7 59 

243 2,051 
- -

164 1,431 
33 275 

- 2,451 
165 1,393 
293 2,479 

- -
- -

299 2,526 
471 3,982 
0 3 

Total 

269,942 
-
-

269,942 
50,347 

287 
-
-

21,100 
153,070 

-
65 

2,294 
-

1,595 
307 

2,451 
1,558 
2,772 

-
-

2,825 
4,453 
3 

Total Expenses $ 5,876,958 $ 2,054,633 $ - $ 7,931,591 $ 36,106 $ 476,964 $ 513,071 



Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30

2018

  

         
     

     

2017

 Total 

$ 
349,714 

3,775,957 
1,950,226 
6,075,896 
1,133,222 

6,469 
-
-

21,100 
409,043 

$ 
315,905 

3,074,256 
1,406,051 
4,796,212 

888,465 
3,669 

-
-

20,500 
328,386 

$ 

-
1,473 

51,624 
-

351,432 
21,343 
66,921 
79,334 
62,399 

-
-

63,576 
100,236 
594 

8,444,661 $ 

-
2,722 

46,147 
-

200,791 
10,996 
68,663 
60,990 
43,217 

-
-

48,415 
100,933 
592 

6,620,696 



EFGHIJKLJMNNOGOPFQRJSOFQFLOQRJTPLU
 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9:7<=J>J?F@GJABHFGEHIJ<79:C9:7<= 

QLEJFHHKGKFGFOJKGEh@JOK@GEHJMEOFPJ@LFAOHJMEJABOFFHEHJKNJFBBOKgFMOEPJnOEF@EJEJBOFKGJGLEJDEF@FGD@HJKNJGLE 

KGEh@JFDEJGFGJKGgOAHEHPJQJFhBOE@JhKkLGJKGgOAHEIJFJPDKGGEGJhFGFkEhEGGJOEGGEDJPF@JGFGJK@@AEHRJGLEJ@gLFFO 
HKHJGFGJEJBEGHJNEHEDFOJNAGH@JKGJEJgE@@JFNJGLEJmKGkOEJIAHKGJQLDE@LFOHJFNJi8C7j777RJGLEJgFDDEgGKSEJFgGKFG 

BOFGJPKOOJMEJ@AMhKGGEHJMTJGLEJNFOOFPKGkJHFGEJD@LFAOHJMEJGFJOFGEDJGLFGJ;7JHFT@JNDFhJGLEJ@AMhK@@KFGJFNJGLE 

DEBFDGHRJEGgP 

c\LGOPFJd\QNOFZ 

e`J]QFQZ\^\FGJ_\GG\H 

LGGB@I99GT@EHUg@FUDEBFDG@PNOAKHDESKEPPgFh9DE@B9<8=<V;=89=h��AGG�S;9 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ DEFJDE@BFG@EH 
G[\J]QFQZ\^\FGJ_\GG\H̀  

f`JSPH^Jaab 

LGGB@I99GT@EHUg@FUDEBFDG@PNOAKHDESKEPPgFh9DE@B9<8=<V;=89NOE�lM�yQQ9 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ IGJEJGEG@KFGJLF@JMEEGJNKOEHP 
G[\JSPH^Jaab` 

g`JS\N\HQRJcOFZR\JMYNOG 

EFGEIJIJgFBTJFNJGLEJNEHEDFOJmKGkOEJIAHKGJhA@GJMEJNKOEHJPKGLJGLEJNEHEDFOJIAHKGJCOEFDKGkLFA@EPJJnOEF@EJDENED 

GFJz�yJoGKNFDhJ{AKHEOKGE@JNFDJGLEJNEHEDFOJNKOKGkJDElAKDEhEGG@P 

DEFJDE@BFG@EH 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ E9IPJQLEJ@gLFFOJHKHJGFGJ@BEGHJhFDEJGLFGJi8C7j777JKGJNEHEDFO 
G[\JS\N\HQRJcOFZR\JMYNOG` NAGHKGkP 

h`JicjJMZH\\NJkWPFJjHPL\NYH\Jl\WPHG 

DEFJDE@BFG@EH 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ E9IPJQLEJ@gLFFOJHFE@JGFGJDElAKDEJFJCmnJIkDEEHJoBFGJnDFgEHADE 

G[\JWHPL\NYH\JH\WPHG` MEBFDGJNFDJNO<=P 

12324
 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17816387/8mMIunnVv3/
https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17816387/FlNDqRIBTE/


K`JEnON\FL\JPXJl\oYOH\NJEULHPmJMLLPYFG 

LGGB@I99GT@EHUg@FUDEBFDG@PNOAKHDESKEPPgFh9DE@B9<8=<V;=89BEV|7EFOgE9 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ DEFJDE@BFG@EH 
G[\JEULHPmJ\nON\FL\` 

p`JiPHH\LGOn\JMLGOPFJjRQF 

IJiPHH\LGOn\JMLGOPFJjRQFJNFDJIAHKGJNKGHKGk@JFGHJ�FGFkEhEGGJ?EGGEDJMEgFhhEGHFGKFG@jJPLKgLJhA@G 
KGgOAHEI 

FPJQLEJBED@FGJDE@BFG@KMOE 

MPJQLEJHFGEJFgGKFGJPF@JGF}EGjJFDJPKOOJMEJGF}EG 

gPJ�E@gDKBGKFGJFNJGLEJFgGKFGJGF}EG 

HPJQSKHEGgEJFNJKhBOEhEGGFGKFGJDKNJFSFKOFMOEH 
DEFJDE@BFG@EH 

EVWRQFQGOPFJXPHJFPGJYWRPQNOFZ E9I 

G[\JiPHH\LGOn\JMLGOPFJjRQF` 

42324
 

https://nysed-cso-reports.fluidreview.com/resp/17816387/pN6H0Nalce/


 

 

 
 

 
 
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF 

BROOKLYN 


ADVISORY COMMENT LETTER
	

JUNE 30, 2018 


kdebellis
COVER STAMP



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
      

 

 
  

  

 
    

    
     

   
     

 
 
  

 
 
  

 
  

 
  
 

 
 
 

      

September  28,  2018 
 	

Board of Trustees 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 
(the “Charter School”) as of June 30, 2018 and for the year then ended, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

•		Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely.

 •		Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this letter and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

* * * * * 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management and the Board of Trustees and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the outstanding cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the 
Charter School’s financial statements. Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Michelle Cain 
or Kate Welc. 

Very  truly  yours,  

MENGEL,  METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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September 28, 2018
	

Board of Trustees 
Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

We have audited the financial statements of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn as of June 30, 2018 and 
for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon dated September 28, 2018. Professional standards 
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 10, 2018, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn solely for the purpose of 
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgement, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

We have provided our comments regarding control deficiencies and other matters noted during our audit in a 
separate letter to you. 
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn is included in Note A to the financial 
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting 
policies or their application during the year ended June 30, 2018.  No matters have come to our attention that would 
require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the allocations of operating expenses 
to program expenses and management and general expenses and the collectability of grants receivable. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they are reasonable in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Unity Preparatory Charter School 
of Brooklyn’s financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of the 
financial statements. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.  No such misstatements were identified during our audit. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were 
brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of the misstatements identified by 
us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were material either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are 
pleased to report no such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn, we 
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
business conditions affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material 
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Unity Preparatory Charter 
School of Brooklyn’s auditors. 

* * * * * 
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Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kate Welc will be happy to meet 
with you at your convenience. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees, Finance Committee and 
management of Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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EXTENSION FILING INSTRUCTIONS 

FORM 8868 FOR FORM 990 

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2018~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Prepared for MR. JOSHUA BEAUREGARD 
UNITY PREP CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 
432 MONROE STREET, 3RD FLOOR 
BROOKLYN, NY 11221 

Prepared by 
MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
100 CHESTNUT STREET, SUITE 1200 
ROCHESTER, NY 14604 

Amount due NOT APPLICABLE 

Make check 
payable to NOT APPLICABLE 

Mail extension 
and check (if 
applicable) to NOT APPLICABLE 

Extension 
must be mailed 
on or before 

NOT APPLICABLE 

Special 
Instructions THE EXTENSION FOR FORM 990 HAS QUALIFIED FOR ELECTRONIC 

FILING. FORM 8868 EXTENDS THE DUE DATE OF THE ORGANIZATION'S 
FORM 990 RETURN UNTIL MAY 15, 2019. THE EXTENSION HAS BEEN 
TRANSMITTED ELECTRONICALLY TO THE IRS AND NO FURTHER ACTION IS 
REQUIRED. 

700085 
04-01-17 



     

Form 8868 Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an 
(Rev. January 2017) Exempt Organization Return OMB No. 1545-1709

Department of the Treasury 
| File a separate application for each return. 

Internal Revenue Service | Information about Form 8868 and its instructions is at .www.irs.gov/form8868 

(e-file).Electronic filing You can electronically file Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the 

forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit 

Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic 
www.irs.gov/efile e-file Charities and Non-Profits.filing of this form, visit , click on Charities & Non-Profits, and click on for 

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).
 
All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts 

must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns. 

Enter filer's identifying number 

Type or Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions. Employer identification number (EIN) or 
UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOLprint 
OF BROOKLYN 

File by the 
due date for Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions. Social security number (SSN) 
filing your 432 MONROE STREET 
return. See 
instructions. City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions. 

BROOKLYN, NY 11221 
0 1Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) _________________ 

Application Return Application Return 

Is For Code Is For Code 

Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07 

Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08 

Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09 

Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10 

Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11 

Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12 
JOSHUA BEAUREGARD 

• The books are in the care of | 

Fax No. | 

• If the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | D 
• If this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) . If this is for the whole group, check this 

box | D . If it is for part of the group, check this box |D and attach a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for. 
MAY 15, 20191 I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until , to file the exempt organization return 

for the organization named above. The extension is for the organization's return for: 

|D calendar year or 
X JUL 1, 2017 JUN 30, 2018|D tax year beginning , and ending .
�

2 If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: D Initial return D Final return
�

D Change in accounting period
�

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any 

nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a $ 0. 
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and 

estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b $ 0. 
c Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, 

by using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c $ 0. 
Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment 
instructions. 

LHA For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2017) 

723841 04-01-17 

1.1 
09371010 781764 UPC1122 2017.04030 UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER S UPC11221

www.irs.gov/efile


 

 

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

*start*consolidated balance summary2

*end*consolidated balance summary2

*start*global product

*end*global product
*start*summary

*end*summary

*start*post summary message1

*end*post summary message1

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 
P O Box 182051 
Columbus, OH 43218 - 2051 

00009500 DRE 802 219 18518 NNNNNNNNNNN  1 000000000 D2 0000 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
OF BROOKLYN 
432 MONROE ST FL 3 
BROOKLYN NY 11221-1111 

June 01, 2018 through June 29, 2018 

Primary Account: 61030 

CUSTOMER SERVICE INFORMATION


Web site: www.Chase.com 
Service Center: 1-877-425-8100 
Deaf and Hard of Hearing: 1-800-242-7383 
Para Espanol: 1-888-622-4273 
International Calls: 1-713-262-1679 

00
09
50
00
40
10
00
00
00
24

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SUMMARY


ASSETS
@

Checking & Savings 

Chase Platinum Business Checking 
Chase Business Select High Yield Savings

Total 

$2,125,261.59
75,175.60

$2,200,437.19 

$1,427,437.13 
75,178.56 

$1,502,615.69 

TOTAL ASSETS $2,200,437.19 $1,502,615.69 

CHASE PLATINUM BUSINESS CHECKING
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL Account  

OF BROOKLYN 

CHECKING SUMMARY
 

Beginning Balance $2,125,261.59 

Deposits and Additions 11 135,277.30 
Checks Paid 3 -61,411.11 
Electronic Withdrawals 61 -771,622.65 
Fees 1 -68.00 
Ending Balance 76 $1,427,437.13 

Your Chase Platinum Business Checking account provides: 
· No transaction fees for unlimited electronic deposits (including ACH, ATM, wire, Chase Quick Deposit) 
· 500 debits and non-electronic deposits (those made via check or cash in branches) per statement cycle 
· $25,000 in cash deposits per statement cycle 
· Unlimited return deposited items with no fee 

There are additional fee waivers and benefits associated with your account � please refer to your Deposit Account 
Agreement for more information. 

Page 1of 8 
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*start*global product

*end*global product
*start*summary

*end*summary

*start*post summary message1

*end*post summary message1

*start*transaction detail

*end*transaction detail

*start*post overdraft and returned item message1

*end*post overdraft and returned item message1

*start*dre portrait disclosure message area

*end*dre portrait disclosure message area

June 01, 2018 through June 29, 2018 

Primary Account: 1030 

CHASE BUSINESS SELECT HIGH YIELD SAVINGS
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL Account Number:

OF BROOKLYN 

SAVINGS SUMMARY
 

Beginning Balance 

Deposits and Additions 
Ending Balance 

$75,175.60 

1 2.96 
1 $75,178.56 

Annual Percentage Yield Earned This Period 
Interest Paid This Period 
Interest Paid Year-to-Date 

0.05% 
$2.96 

$18.60 

Your monthly service fee was waived because you maintained an average savings balance of $10,000 or more during the 
statement period. 

TRANSACTION DETAIL
 

Beginning Balance $75,175.60 

06/29 Interest Payment 2.96 75,178.56 
Ending Balance $75,178.56 

You earned a higher interest rate on your Chase Business Select High Yield Savings account during this statement period 
because you had a qualifying Chase Platinum Business Checking account. 

30 deposited items are provided with your account each month. There is a $0.20 fee for each additional deposited item.

IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS: Call us at 1-866-564-2262 or write us at the 
address on the front of this statement (non-personal accounts contact Customer Service) immediately if you think your statement or receipt is 
incorrect or if you need more information about a transfer listed on the statement or receipt. 
For personal accounts only: We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the FIRST statement on which the problem or error 
appeared. Be prepared to give us the following information: 

Your name and account number 
The dollar amount of the suspected error
A description of the error or transfer you are unsure of, why you believe it is an error, or why you need more information.


We will investigate your complaint and will correct any error promptly. If we take more than 10 business days (or 20 business days for new


accounts) to do this, we will credit your account for the amount you think is in error so that you will have use of the money during the time it takes


us to complete our investigation .


IN CASE OF ERRORS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT NON-ELECTRONIC TRANSACTIONS: Contact the bank immediately if your statement is 


incorrect or if you need more information about any non-electronic transactions (checks or deposits) on this statement. If any such error appears,


you must notify the bank in writing no later than 30 days after the statement was made available to you. For more complete details, see the


Account Rules and Regulations or other applicable account agreement that governs your account. Deposit products and services are offered by


JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Member FDIC
@

10
09
50
00
40
40
00
00
00
64

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Member FDIC 
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Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MA & 

GENERAL 
NAGEMENT TOTAL 

8,736,081 1,903,966 - 1,440 5,409 10,646,897 
7,823,061 2,372,221 - 55,424 303,155 10,553,860 

913,021 (468,256) - (53,984) (297,745) 93,036 
547 128 -

- - -

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 
District of Location $15,307.00 8,370,480 - - - - 8,370,480 
School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

8,370,480 8,370,480 

Special Education Revenue - 1,718,353 - - - 1,718,353 

Grants 
Stimulus - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -

Other State Revenue - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 8,370,480 1,718,353 10,088,833 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 

Title Funding - Other
�
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
�
Grants
�

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation
�

Other
�
Other Federal Revenue
�

321,585 172,185 1,355 5,089 500,213 TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

- 74,340 - - - 74,340 

131,919 40,336 - - - 172,255 

5,356 1,638 - - - 6,994 
- - - - - -

- - - - - -
-

184,309 55,871 - 1,355 5,089 246,625 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - - - -
Erate Reimbursement 8,878 2,691 - 65 245 11,880 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 27 8 - 0 1 36 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - -
Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - - -

Text Book 35,112 10,729 - 20 74 45,935 

Other Local Revenue - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 44,017 13,428 85 320 57,851 

TOTAL REVENUE 8,736,081 1,903,966 1,440 5,409 10,646,897 
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Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
Total Revenue 8,736,081 1,903,966 - 1,440 5,409 

Total Expenses 7,823,061 2,372,221 - 55,424 303,155 
Net Income 913,021 (468,256) - (53,984) (297,745) 

Actual Student Enrollment 547 128 
Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

10,646,897 
10,553,860 

93,036 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 

EXPENSES 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1 56,320 7,680 - 32,000 32,000 
Instructional Management 4 319,354 97,646 - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 9 552,937 165,563 - 9,400 61,100 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 3 69,932 19,668 - - 62,400 
Administrative Staff - - - - -

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 17 998,543 290,557 41,400 155,500 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 62 3,781,446 1,156,214 - - -
Teachers - SPED - - - - -
Substitute Teachers 11,488 3,512 - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 5 449,547 137,453 - - -
Aides 3 78,115 23,885 - - -
Therapists & Counselors 8 258,394 79,006 - - -
Other - 54,183 16,567 - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 78 4,633,172 1,416,638 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse - - - - -
Librarian - - - - -
Custodian - - - - -
Security - - - - -
Other - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 95 5,631,715 1,707,195 41,400 155,500 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 489,381 148,351 - 3,598 13,513 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 728,718 220,903 - 5,357 20,121 
Retirement / Pension 37,336 11,318 - 274 1,031 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,255,436 380,572 9,229 34,664 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 6,887,151 2,087,767 50,629 190,164 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit 17,189 5,211 - 126 475 
Legal - - - - -
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services 9,391 2,847 - 69 259 

128,000 
417,000 

789,000 

-
152,000 

-
1,486,000 

4,937,660 
-

15,000 
-

587,000 
102,000 
337,400 

70,750 
6,049,810 

-
-
-
-
-

7,535,810 

654,842 
975,099 

49,960 
1,679,902 

9,215,712 

23,000 
-
-
-
-

12,566 
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Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

Special Ed Services - - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 259,323 78,611 - 1,906 7,160 347,000 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 285,902 86,668 2,102 7,894 382,566 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses - - - - 480 480 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 107,696 32,929 - - - 140,625 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 35,178 10,756 - - - 45,935 
Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 15,705 4,794 - 22 3,083 23,604 
Telephone 747 227 - 5 21 1,000 
Technology 58,048 17,597 - 427 1,603 77,675 
Student Testing & Assessment 15,317 4,683 - - - 20,000 
Field Trips 18,380 5,620 - - - 24,000 
Transportation (student) 49,014 14,986 - - - 64,000 
Student Services - other 42,576 12,995 - 64 240 55,875 
Office Expense 20,007 6,065 - 147 32,552 58,772 
Staff Development 30,715 9,311 - 226 60,348 100,600 
Staff Recruitment 27,651 8,382 - 203 763 37,000 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 26,156 7,929 - 192 722 35,000 
School Meals / Lunch 10,683 3,267 - - - 13,950 
Travel (Staff) 766 234 - - - 1,000 
Fundraising - - - - - -
Other 1,495 453 - 11 41 2,000 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 460,136 140,229 1,297 99,853 701,515 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 43,235 13,106 - 318 1,194 57,853 
Janitorial 3,737 1,133 - 27 103 5,000 
Building and Land Rent / Lease - - - - - -
Repairs & Maintenance 3,737 1,133 - 27 103 5,000 
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 50,709 15,372 373 1,400 67,853 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 139,163 42,186 - 1,023 3,842 186,214 
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 7,823,061 2,372,221 55,424 303,155 10,553,860 

NET INCOME 913,021 (468,256) - (53,984) (297,745) 93,036 

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 8,736,081 1,903,966 - 1,440 5,409 10,646,897 
Total Expenses 7,823,061 2,372,221 - 55,424 303,155 10,553,860 

Net Income 913,021 (468,256) - (53,984) (297,745) 93,036 
Actual Student Enrollment 547 128 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



        

   
    
    
    
    

 

  

  

      
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

TOTAL 
ENROLLED 

District of Location 547 128 675 
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 547 128 675 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 15,976 14,869 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 14,306 18,526 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2018-2019 

July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL TOTAL 

Total Revenue 8,736,081 1,903,966 - 1,440 5,409 10,646,897 
Total Expenses 7,823,061 2,372,221 - 55,424 303,155 10,553,860 

Net Income 913,021 (468,256) - (53,984) (297,745) 93,036 
Actual Student Enrollment 547 128 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

      

           
   

          
               

          

         

          
       

               
               

   

         

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Enrollment projections based on $15,307 per student. 

Projections based on $10,390 per student receiving 20-60% services and $19,049 per 
student receiving 60%+ services. 

Allocation approximately $900 per SPED student receiving over 20% SPED services 
from prior January per pupil invoice.Funding to help low-income students meet academic standards. School would 
receive approximately $450 per FRPL student (current assumptions based on 70% 
FRPL).To provide professional development. Projections based on 2017-18 allocation. 

90% of eligible internet expenses ($9,600), 85% of basic maintenance ($3,600) 
To be updated upon receipt of e-rate application 

Budget based on a rate of $61.60 per student. Non-cash revenue; Budget based on a 
rate of $15.80 per student. Non-cash revenue; Budget based on a rate of $6.60 per 
student. Non-cash revenue. 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 



  

            
        

     

  

 
           
   

  

         

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Head of School 
Co-Principals 
Director of Athletics, PE, and Dance; Assoc. Dir. of Support Services; Director of 
Support Services; Dean of Students, Data & Testing Coodinator 

Operations Coordinator; Operations Manager, Operations Associate 

Teachers 

Internal Substitute Teachers 

Instructional Coaches 
based on 1 Admin Assistants, 1 Manager of Special Projects, School Aides 
Social Workers, College Counselors 
Stipends, approved overtime 

Professional audit services- includes both the 990 and the audit. 



       

 

 

   

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

External financial consulting, Annual Report consulting, translation services. 

Classroom Supplies 

General insurance 

Based on Fixed Assets 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 







































           
    

 
   

 
  

 
 

           
    

 
     

 
           

  
  

           
   

 
             

      
  

             
         

  
 

             
      

 
           

           
             

              
              

               
       

 
    

 
    

   
   
   

 

   
  

  
  
  

 
    

 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School

Education Corporation Trustee
*

Trustee Name: 

Jim Ellsworth 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is
the Charter School Name): 

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

1.	*List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Board Chair 

2.	*Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3.	*Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes __X__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4.	*Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid
a conflict of interest, 

(e.g., did not vote,
did not participate in

discussion) 

Name of person
holding interest or

engaging in
transaction and 
relationship to

yourself 
None None None None 



         
        

             
           

              
             

             
         

          
          

         
 

 
 

 
  

 
                

              
      

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
 
 

 
  

 
 

    
  

  
  

  
   

    

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

   

5.	*Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximate
value of the 

business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member
of household holding an 

interest in the organization
conducting business with

the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken
to Avoid 

Conflict of 
Interest 

None 
None None None None 

________ ________________________________________________________ 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such, may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Tel __________ 

Business Ad ___________ 

E-mail Addre _________ 

Home Teleph ________ 

Home Addre ________ 

Jim Ellsworth
July 13, 2018



      
 

     

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 

                 
          

 
                   

                
               

 
       
    

 
 

 
                   

             
                

           
 
 

   
 

     

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn 

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

Name: 

Title: 

(1) I have read and understand the Conflict of Interest Policy of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn and agree to comply with its terms and conditions. 

(2) Except as noted in {3) below, I do not have any direct or indirect relationship with any third 
party which gives rise to a conflict of interest, potential conflict of interest or the appearance of 
a conflict of interest resulting from my service to Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn. 

(3) State "None" or identify any exception: 

(4) I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, all of the information on this Disclosure 
Statement is true, correct, complete and made in good faith. If circumstances change from the 
above during the course of my service to Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn, I will 
notify the Chairman or Secretary of the Board of Trustees promptly. 

Signature: 

Date: 

Jim Ellsworth
Board Chair

Jim Ellsworth
None

Jim Ellsworth
July 13, 2018

Jim Ellsworth
James Ellsworth
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MINUTES OF A MEETING
	

OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
	

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
	

HELD: July 27, 2017
	

A meeting of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity 
Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on July 27, 2017 commencing 
at 5:03 p.m., New York time. Notice of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted 
on the School’s website and was sent to the New York Times and the New York Daily News. 
Five Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum. 

The following Trustee was present at 328 Dean Street, Brooklyn NY 11217 at the 
beginning of the meeting and linked by videoconference: 

Kenneth Baum 

The following Trustee was present at 101 6th Avenue, New York, NY 10013 at the 
beginning of the meeting and linked by videoconference: 

Michael Brown 

The following Trustee was present at 387 Park Avenue South, New York, NY 10013 at 
the beginning of the meeting and linked by videoconference: 

Jake Elghanayan 

The following Trustee was present at 122 West 26th, 2nd Floor, NYC 10001 at the 
beginning of the meeting and linked by videoconference: 

James Ellsworth 

The following Trustee was present at 125 Broad Street, New York, NY 10004 at the 
beginning of the meeting and linked by videoconference: 

Marion Leydier 

Also in attendance and connected by videoconference from 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn 
NY at the invitation of the Executive Committee were Joshua Beauregard and Chris Doscher and 
connected by telephone was Jeannette Braun. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the School’s charter renewal application, a 
draft of which was circulated to the Board on July 12 and on which members of the Board had 
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__________________________  
​ ​  

 

commented. Following discussion, the Trustees present unanimously adopted the following 
resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the submission of the charter renewal application (the “Application”) 
to the New York State Education Department (“NYSED”) in substantially the form circulated to 
the Board, subject to the comments received from the Board, be, and hereby is, approved, which 
Application shall (1) request that the NYSED approve an expansion of the grade levels served by 
the School to include grade 11 beginning in the 2018-2019 school year and grade 12 beginning 
in the 2019-2020 school year and (2) reflect a maximum enrollment by the School of 112 
students per grade level beginning in the 2018-2019 school year. 

RESOLVED, that Joshua Beauregard be, and hereby is, authorized to finalize the 
Application in consultation with the School’s Tugboat Education advisors. 

There being no further business to come before the Executive Committee, upon motion 
duly made and seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 5:19 p.m., New York time, at 
which time Mr. Ellsworth proposed an executive session of the Executive Committee to discuss 
a proposal to approve the annual base salary of the Head of School for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. 
Following discussion and review of materials circulated to the Trustees in advance of the 
meeting, the Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the annual base salary paid by the School to the Head of School for the 
2017-2018 fiscal year be increased to $128,000, subject to applicable withholdings. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 5:23 p.m., New York time. 

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

  
  

  
  

  

  
 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

    
 

 

   
   

    

    
 

  
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: July 12, 2017
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on July 12, 2017 commencing at 7:13 p.m., New York time.  
Seven Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  Notice of 
the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent to 
the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, New York 11221 
at the beginning of the meeting: 

Ashley Cotton 

Kenneth Baum 

Michael Brown 

The following Trustees was present at 55 E 52nd Street, New York, NY 10022 and were 
linked by videoconference: 

James Ellsworth 

Kabir Ahuja 

Marion Leydier 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street Cambridge, MA 02141 and were 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board at 432 Monroe Street were Joshua 
Beauregard, Casey Burns,  Sal Siddiqui, Chris Doscher, Heather Blumberg, Paul O’Neil, Sarah 
Olle, and Michelle Rumph and at 55 E 52nd Street was Jeannette Braun. 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Mr. O’Neil and Ms. Olle of Tugboat Education led a discussion regarding the status of 
the School’s Renewal Application and next steps for the approval and submission of the Renewal 
Application.  

Minutes of Prior Meeting 



 
 

 

 

 
  

  

   

  
   

   

   
 

 

   

    

  

    

   
 

   
 

    
 

   
  

  

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the June 7, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the June 7, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, approved. 

Minutes of Executive Committee Meeting 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the June 13, 2017 
meeting of the Executive Committee that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The 
Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the June 13, 2017 Executive Committee meeting minutes be, and 
hereby are, approved, subject to finalizing certain details set forth therein. 

Amendments to Bylaws, Conflict of Interest Policy and Whistleblower Policy 

Ms. Leydier led a discussion regarding amendments to the School’s By-laws, Conflict of 
Interest Policy and Whistleblower Policy to reflect amendments to the New York Nonprofit 
Revitalization Act. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the amended and restated Bylaws, Conflict of Interest Policy and 
Whistleblower Policy of the School, in each case in the form previously circulated to the Board, 
be, and hereby are, approved.  

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2016-17 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Blumberg led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates to the 2016-17 Action Plan. 

Mr. Beauregard, Mr. Ellsworth and Mr. Brown led a discussion regarding updates from 
the Development & Facilities Committee.  

Conflicts of Interest Review – Conduct Review of Article VIII of Conflict of Interest Policy and 
Reminder to Submit Annual Conflicts Statement 

Mr. Ellsworth reminded the Trustees to submit their annual statements under the School’s 
Conflicts of Interest Policy. 

Discussion of Governance Action Items Calendar for 2017-18 



   
 

 

  

 

  

 

     

 

 
  

   
   

  

 

__________________________   
 

 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the Board’s planned governance action items 
for the 2017-2018 school year.
 

Relevant Events for Board of Trustees Participation  


Mr. Beauregard led a discussion of upcoming school events for Board of Trustees 
participation. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
August 9, 2017. 

Associate Board 

Mr. Siddiqui indicated there were no updates from the Associate Board at this time. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:06 p.m., New York time, at which time Mr. 
Ellsworth proposed an executive session of the Board to consider the base salary of the Head of 
School for the 2017-2018 fiscal year.  Following discussion, the Trustees present determined to 
consider the topic at the upcoming meeting of the Executive Committee of the Board.  

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  
  

 
  

  

   
  

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

    
 

 
  

 

   
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

HELD: August 9, 2017 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on August 9, 2017 commencing at 7:08 p.m., New York time.  
Seven Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  Notice of 
the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent to 
the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at 387 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10016 at the 
beginning of the meeting: 

Jake Elghanayan 

Michael Brown 

James Ellsworth 

Franklin Amoo 

The following Trustee was present at 25 Murray Street, New York, NY 10007 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Kabir Ahuja 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street, Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at 2101 35th Avenue, Oakland, CA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Aryn Bowman 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board at 387 Park Avenue were Hemanth 
Venkataraman, Sal Siddiqui, Heather Blumberg, and Michelle Rumph.  Joshua Beauregard 
attended the meeting at the invitation of the Board through video conference.  Board members 
Carlyle Leach, Ashley Cotton, and Kenneth Baum attended the meeting through videoconference 
but did not count towards voting or quorum. 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 



 
 

 

  
 

 

 

  

 
    

  

 

    

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
  

  

  
  

 

  
 

 

  

 

Minutes of Prior Meeting 
The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the July 12, 2017 

meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the July 12, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

Minutes of Executive Committee Meeting 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the July 27, 2017 
meeting of the Executive Committee that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The 
Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the July 27, 2017 Executive Committee meeting minutes be, and 
hereby are, approved and the actions taken by the Executive Committee be, and hereby are, 
ratified. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2016-17 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Blumberg and Mr. Ahuja led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & 
Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates to the 2016-17 Action Plan. 

Mr. Elghanayan, Mr. Brown, and Mr. Ellsworth led a discussion regarding updates from 
the Development & Facilities Committee. 

Discussion of Governance Action Items Calendar for 2017-18 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the Board’s planned governance action items 
for the 2017-2018 school year. 

Relevant Events for Board of Trustees Participation  

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion of upcoming school events for Board of Trustees 
participation. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
September 6, 2017. 

Associate Board 



   

 

 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

Mr. Siddiqui indicated there were no updates from the Associate Board at this time. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:13 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

 

  
   

 
  

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

    
   

   
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: September 6, 2017 


A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on September 6, 2017 commencing at 7:04 p.m., New York 
time.  Seven Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  
Notice of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and 
was sent to the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, NY 11221 at the 
beginning of the meeting: 

Ken Baum 

Michael Brown 

Ashley Cotton 

Jake Elghanayan 

James Ellsworth 

Carlyle Leach 

Marion Leydier 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street, Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at 2101 35th Avenue, Oakland, CA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Aryn Bowman 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board at 432 Monroe Street were Joshua 
Beauregard, Heather Blumberg, Casey Burns, Sal Siddiqui, and Michelle Rumph. 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting 



 
 

  
 

  
  

    

 

  
  

  

 

 

 
  

   

  
  

 

   
  

  

  

  

  
  

    

   
  

 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the August 9, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the August 9, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

2017-18 Middle School Student & Family Handbook 

Mr. Beauregard and the Trustees present discussed the 2017-18 Middle School Student & Family 
Handbook for approval, a copy of which was previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2017-2018 Middle School Student & Family Handbook be, and 
hereby is, approved. 

2017-18 Employee Handbook 

Mr. Beauregard and the Trustees present discussed the 2017-18 Employee Handbook for 
approval, a copy of which was previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2017-2018 Employee Handbook be, and hereby is, approved. 

2017-18 School-wide Goals and Benchmarks 

Mr. Beauregard and the Trustees present discussed the 2017-18 School-wide Goals and 
Benchmarks for approval, a copy of which was previously circulated to the Trustees. The 
Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2017-18 School-wide Goals and Benchmarks be, and hereby is, 
approved. 

2017-18 Strategic Plan 

Mr. Beauregard and the Trustees present discussed the 2017-18 Strategic Plan for approval, a 
copy of which was previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously 
adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2017-18 Strategic Plan be, and hereby is, approved. 

2017-18 Governance Action Items Calendar 

Mr. Beauregard and the Trustees present discussed the 2017-18 Governance Action Items 
Calendar for approval, a copy of which was previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2017-18 Governance Action Items Calendar be, and hereby is, 
approved. 



 

    

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

  

 

     

 

 
  

 
 

 

 

__________________________   
 

 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2016-17 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Blumberg and Ms. Leydier led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & 
Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates to the 2016-17 Action Plan. 

Mr. Brown, Ms. Cotton, Mr. Elghanayan, and Mr. Ellsworth led a discussion regarding 
updates from the Development & Facilities Committee. 

Relevant Events for Board of Trustees Participation  

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion of upcoming school events for Board of Trustees 
participation. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
October 4, 2017. 

Associate Board 

Mr. Siddiqui indicated there were no updates from the Associate Board at this time. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:46 p.m., New York time, at which time Mr. 
Ellsworth proposed an executive session of the Board to discuss the Board of Trustees’ Self-
Assessment. 

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

   

 

 
    

   
 

 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

     
 

 

   
 

 

   

   

 

   
 

 
  

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING
	

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 


UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
	

HELD: October 4, 2017
	

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on October 4, 2017 commencing at 7:08 p.m., New York 
time.  Seven Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  
Notice of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and 
was sent to the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at One MetroTech, 23rd Floor Main Conference 
Room, Brooklyn, NY 11201 at the beginning of the meeting: 

Ashley Cotton 

Carlyle Leach 

James Ellsworth 

Kenneth Baum 

Michael Brown 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at 2101 35th Ave Oakland, CA 94601 and was linked 
by videoconference: 

Aryn Bowman 

The following Trustee was present at 220 South, 200 East, Salt Lake City, UT 84111 

and was linked by videoconference: 

James Ellsworth 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Casey Burns, 
Hemanth Venkataraman, Sal Siddiqui, Chris Doscher, Heather Blumberg, Michelle Rumph, 
Stephanie Mauterstock, Paul O’Neil, Eric Javier, and Suzanne Eden. Board members Marion 
Leydier and Franklin Amoo were present for the meeting via videoconference but did not count 
towards voting or quorum. 



  
 

 

  

 

  
 

   

   
    

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

    
 

 
  

 

 

 
    

 

__________________________    
 

 

Mr. Leach called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting was 

to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the September 6, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the September 6, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

2017-18 High School Student & Family Handbook 

Mr. Leach led a discussion regarding updates to the 2017-18 High School Student & 
Family Handbook. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the updates to the 2017-18 High School Student & Family Handbook 
be, and hereby are, approved. 

Other Matters 

Ms. Eden & Mr. Javier from CCS Fundraising led a presentation regarding development 
opportunities for Unity. 

Ms. Mauterstock & Mr. O’Neil led a discussion regarding the upcoming renewal site visit 
from the New York State Education Department. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Blumberg led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee, 
including an upcoming call with the auditor. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:51 p.m., New York time.  

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

 

  
   

   
 

  

  
 

 

 

 

   
 

 

    
   

 

    
 

 

  
   

  

     
  

 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

HELD: November 1, 2017 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on November 1, 2017 commencing at 7:08 p.m., New York 
time. Seven Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  
Notice of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and 
was sent to the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at One MetroTech, 23rd Floor Main Conference 
Room, Brooklyn, NY 11201 at the beginning of the meeting: 

Ashley Cotton 

Carlyle Leach 

Kenneth Baum 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at 5 Leigh St, Kings Cross, London, England WC1H 
9EW and was linked by videoconference: 

Franklin Amoo 

The following Trustee was present at Praia de Botafogo, 472 Rio de Janeiro, Rio de 
Janeiro, Brazil 22250-040 and was linked by videoconference: 

Michael Brown 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Sal Siddiqui, 
Chris Doscher, and Heather Blumberg. Board member James Ellsworth was present for the 
meeting via videoconference but did not count towards voting or quorum. 

Mr. Leach called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting was 
to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the October 4, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 



 

  
  

  

  

 
  

 
 

  

 
  

  

 

  

 

 

    

  

  

  
 

   
  

 

  
 

 

RESOLVED, that the October 4, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

CCS Supplemental Agreement and Scope of Work  

Mr. Brown led a discussion regarding updates to the CCS Supplemental Agreement. The 
Trustees present unanimously adopted the agreement: 

RESOLVED, that the Agreement and Scope of Work, as provided by CCS be, and 
hereby is, approved. 

Hemanth Venkataraman as Unity’s Dignity for All Students Act (DASA) Coordinator 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the nomination of Hemanth Venkataraman as 
the DASA Coordinator. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the agreement: 

RESOLVED, that Hemanth Venkataraman be, and hereby is, approved as the DASA 
Coordinator for Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn. 

Amendment to Financial Policies and Procedures Manual 

Ms. Blumberg presented a proposed amendment to Unity’s Financial Policies and 
Procedures Manual regarding the system to which employees may request time off. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the agreement: 

RESOLVED, that the proposed amendment: 

“Employee leave request is submitted and approved electronically,” 

as proposed by Ms. Blumberg be, and hereby is, approved. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Blumberg led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Brown led a discussion regarding updates from the Development & Facilities 
Committee. 

Discussion of School Visit 

Mr. Baum led a discussion surrounding the upcoming school visits scheduled by the 
Board of Trustees. 

Discussion of Governance Action Items 



   

 

 
  

 

  

 

    
 

 

 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding Governance Action Items. 

Discussion of Relevant School Events for BOT Participation in 2017-18 

Mr. Beauregard and Mr. Doscher led a discussion regarding relevant school events for 
Board of Trustees participation in the current school year. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
December 6, 2017. 

Associate Board 

Mr. Siddiqui provided updates from the Associate Board, including the recent event the 
Associate Board hosted. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:25 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

 

  
  

    
  

  
 

 

 

 

 

   
 

 

  
 

 

    
  

 

    
 

 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

HELD: December 6, 2017 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on December 6, 2017 commencing at 7:12 p.m., New York 
time. Six Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  Notice 
of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent 
to the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.   

The following Trustees were present at One MetroTech, 23rd Floor Main Conference 
Room, Brooklyn, NY 11201 at the beginning of the meeting: 

Ashley Cotton 

James Ellsworth 

Kenneth Baum 

Michael Brown 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at 2101 35th Ave Oakland, CA 94601 and was linked 
by videoconference: 

Aryn Bowman 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Chris Doscher, 
Michelle Rumph, Heather Blumberg, Trudy Sandy, and Casey Burns (linked via 
videoconference). 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the November 1, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the November 1, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 



  

 
 

  

  
 

 

    

 
  

 

    

 

   

  
 

  
   

 

 
 

 

   
  

 

 

 

    

 

Proposal to Amend the School’s Charter 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding potential amendments to the school’s charter 
to be submitted to the New York State Education Department. Following discussion, the 
Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that Mr. Beauregard be, and hereby is, granted the authority to present the 
New York State Education Department with the proposed charter amendments. 


Trustee Kabir Ahuja joined the meeting at 7:15pm and was present for the remainder of the 

meeting.
 

School Process for Determining Appropriate Grade Level Designations for Incoming Students 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the school’s process for determining the 
appropriate grade level designations for incoming students.  

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 


Ms. Blumberg led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 


Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning
 
Committee. 

Mr. Ahuja and Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Development 
& Facilities Committee. 

Discussion of School Visit 

Mr. Baum led a discussion surrounding the upcoming school visits scheduled by the 
Board of Trustees. 

Discussion of Relevant School Events for BOT Participation in 2017-18 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding relevant school events for Board of Trustees 
participation in the current school year. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
January 10, 2018. 

Associate Board 

Mr. Beauregard provided updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 



 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:25 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

  
  

   
 

  

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

   
 

  

    
 

 

    

    
 

 
 

   

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: January 10, 2018
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on January 10, 2018 commencing at 7:11 p.m., New York 
time. Seven Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum.  
Notice of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and 
was sent to the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at One MetroTech, 23rd Floor Main Conference 
Room, Brooklyn, NY 11201 at the beginning of the meeting: 

Ashley Cotton 

Carlyle Leach 

James Ellsworth 

Kabir Ahuja 

Kenneth Baum 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street, Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at Praia de Botafogo, 472 Rio de Janeiro, Rio de 
Janeiro, Brazil 22250-040 and was linked by videoconference: 

Michael Brown 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Chris Doscher, 
and Michelle Rumph.  

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the December 6, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 



 
 

 

    

 

 

  
 

  
  

  

 

 

   
  

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

RESOLVED, that the December 6, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting.
 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key
 
Benchmarks. 


Trustee Michael Brown left the meeting at 7:45pm. 

Ms. Rumph led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Ahuja and Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Development 
& Facilities Committee. 

Discussion of Prospective Board Member and Next Steps 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the prospective addition of a new member to 
the Board of Trustees. 

Discussion of Relevant School Events for BOT Participation in 2017-18 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding relevant school events for Board of Trustees 
participation in the current school year. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
February 7, 2018. 

Associate Board 

There were no updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:07 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

  
  

    
  

  
  

 

 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 

   
  

 

    
 

 

    

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: February 7, 2018
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on February 7, 2018 commencing at 7:16 p.m., New York 
time. Three Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting; quorum was not met.  Notice 
of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent 
to the New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.   

The following Trustees were present at 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, NY 11221 at the 
beginning of the meeting: 

Kenneth Baum 

Michael Brown 

Jake Elghanayan 

The following Trustee was present at 2101 35th Avenue, Oakland, CA 94601 and was linked by 
videoconference: 

Aryn Bowman 

The following Trustee was present at 2 Penn Plaza, New York, NY 10121 and was linked by 
videoconference: 

Kabir Ahuja 

The following Trustees were linked via videoconference, but not counted towards 
quorum: 

James Ellsworth 

Franklin Amoo 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Casey Burns, 
Chris Doscher, Charles David, Andrew Emeritz, Michelle Rumph, and Jeannette E. Braun (via 
videoconference). 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 



 

 

  
 

    
  

  

 

 

    
  

 

 

 

  

 

 
  

 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Rumph led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Elghanayan led a discussion regarding updates from the Development & Facilities 
Committee. 

Discussion of Prospective Board Member and Next Steps 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the prospective addition of a new member to 
the Board of Trustees. 

Discussion of Relevant School Events for BOT Participation in 2017-18 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding relevant school events for Board of Trustees 
participation in the current school year. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting, scheduled for 
March 7, 2018. 

Associate Board 

There were no updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 

Mr. David asked questions regarding the prospective relocation of the high school 
facility, to which Mr. Beauregard and Mr. Elghanayan replied. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:13 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

  
  

  
  

 

  

  

   

 

 

  

   

    

 
 

 

 

  
 

    
 

  

 
   

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: March 7, 2018
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on March 7, 2018 commencing at 7:12 p.m., New York time.  
Six Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting; quorum was met.  Notice of the 
meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent to the 
New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

Due to inclement weather, all of the trustees were linked via video conference: 

Kabir Ahuja (25 Murray Street. Apt 10B, New York, NY) 

Kenneth Baum (at 328 Dean Street, Brooklyn, NY) 

Aryn Bowman (at 2101 35th Ave Oakland, CA) 

Ashley Cotton (at 550 Vanderbilt Avenue, Brooklyn, NY) 

Jacob Elghanayan (at 712 Broadway, #5, New York) 

Jim Ellsworth (at 455 Park Ave. South, New York, NY) 

Marion Leydier (at 241 Eldridge Street, New York, NY) 

The following board member was present and linked via videoconference, but did not 
count towards quorum: 

Franklin Amoo 

Carlyle Leach 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Chris Doscher, 
and Michelle Rumph (via audio). 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting - January 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the January 10, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 



 
 

  

 
   

  
 

 
   

 

 

 

  
 

  

  

   
   

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

    

 

 

RESOLVED, that the January 10, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting - February 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the February 7, 2017 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the February 7, 2017 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

2016 Form 990 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the 2016 Form 990, which Michelle 
Rumph discussed and was previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present 
unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2016 Form 990 be, and hereby is, approved. 

Amendments to the 2017-18 Budget 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the amended 2017-18 budget, which 
was previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the 
following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the amendments to the 2017-18 budget be, and hereby are, approved. 

Consideration of Proposing Trudy Sandy for Election to the Board 

The Trustees discussed and considered the election of Trudy Sandy to the Board of 
Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that, the Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn Board of Trustees 
hereby selects Trudy Sandy as a candidate to its Board of Trustees, subject to (1) a 
thorough background check via a fingerprint scan as required by the State of New York, 
(2) a final vote by the Trustees after the School’s consideration of the results of the 
background check and (3) Ms. Sandy’s approval by the New York State Education 
Department.  The resolution approving Ms. Sandy will take effect upon SED’s approval of 
Ms. Sandy. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Rumph led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 
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Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee.
 

Mr. Elghanayan led a discussion regarding updates from the Development & Facilities
 
Committee.
 

Discussion of Prospective Board Member and Next Steps 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the prospective addition of a new member to 
the Board of Trustees. 

Discussion of Relevant School Events for BOT Participation in 2017-18 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding relevant school events for Board of Trustees 
participation in the current school year. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard previewed items for the next Board of Trustees meeting. Mr. Ellsworth 
proposed moving the next meeting date to April 11, and the Trustees present 
unanimously approved the next meeting date move to April 11.  

Associate Board 

There were no updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:55 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

  
  

  
  

 

  
  

 

 

 

 

  

   
 

 

  
 

    
 

  

 
 

   

 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: April 11, 2018
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on April 11, 2018 commencing at 7:19 p.m., New York time.  
Six Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting; quorum was met.  Notice of the 
meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent to the 
New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, NY 11221 at the 
beginning of the meeting: 

Kabir Ahuja 

Michael Brown 

Jacob Elghanayan 

Jim Ellsworth 

Marion Leydier 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street, Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Jeannette 
Braun, Casey Burns, Chris Doscher, Michelle Rumph, and Sal Siddiqui. 

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting - March 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the March 7, 2018 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the March 7, 2018 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

Consideration of Proposing Sarah Olle for Election to the Board 



 
  

  
  

      
 

    

 
 

   
 

 

    

  

 

  
 

    
  

 

  

 

 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

The Trustees discussed and considered the proposal for Sarah Olle to be elected to the 
Board of Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that, the Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn Board of Trustees 
hereby selects Sarah Olle as a candidate to its Board of Trustees, subject to (1) a thorough 
background check via a fingerprint scan as required by the State of New York, (2) a final 
vote by the Trustees after the School’s consideration of the results of the background 
check and (3) Ms. Olle’s approval by the New York State Education Department.  The 
resolution approving Ms. Olle will take effect upon SED’s approval of Ms. Olle. 

Authorization to Engage a Land Use Counsel 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the authorization to engage a Land 

Use Counsel:
 

RESOLVED, that the authorization to engage a land use counsel be, and hereby is, 

approved. 


Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 


Ms. Rumph led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 


Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning
 
Committee. 

Mr. Elghanayan led a discussion regarding updates from the Development & Facilities 
Committee. 

Associate Board 

There were no updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:35 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

     

   

  

    
   

  
 

   

    
 

 

  
 

 

  
  

 

   
    

    

      
   

 

  
   

    
 

 

__________________________   
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN 

HELD: May 10, 2018 

A meeting of the Executive Committee of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity 
Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on May 10, 2018 commencing 
at 3:03 p.m., New York time.  Notice of the meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted 
on the School’s website and was sent to the New York Times and the New York Daily News.  
Three Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting, representing a quorum. 

The following Trustee was present at 32 Fort Greene Place, Brooklyn NY 11217 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Carlyle Leach 

The following Trustee was present at 101 6th Avenue, New York NY 10013 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Michael Brown 

The following Trustee was present at 125 Broad Street, New York, NY and was linked 
by videoconference: 

Marion Leydier 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Chris Doscher, and Matt Libby, 
Vice President at MDG Employee Benefit Solutions, the School’s benefit plan broker. 

Renewal of Employee Benefit Medical Insurance Plans 

Mr. Libby led a discussion regarding the renewal of the School’s employee benefit plans 
for the School’s 2018-2019 fiscal year. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following 
resolution: 

RESOLVED, that Joshua Beauregard and Chris Doscher be, and hereby are, authorized 
to cause the School to transfer to the Silver Freedom OAEPO $2,500 30% (EPOc) insurance 
plan on the terms presented to the Trustees, reflecting a 8.8% premium increase over the 2017­
2018 School year, and to negotiate and enter into such agreements as are necessary with respect 
thereto. 

Carlyle Leach 
Vice Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

  

  
  

  
  

 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 

  
 

    
 

  

 
   

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: May 2, 2018
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on May 2, 2018 commencing at 7:08 p.m., New York time.  
Six Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting; quorum was met.  Notice of the 
meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent to the 
New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, NY 11221 at the 
beginning of the meeting: 

Kenneth Baum 

Michael Brown 

Jacob Elghanayan 

Jim Ellsworth 

Trudy Sandy 

The following Trustee was present at 2101 35th Ave Oakland, CA 94601 and was linked 
by videoconference: 

Aryn Bowman 

The following Trustees were linked via videoconference, but did not count towards 
quorum: 

Franklin Amoo 

Marion Leydier 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Joshua Beauregard, Jeannette 
Braun, Chris Doscher, and Michelle Rumph.  

Mr. Ellsworth called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting 
was to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting - April 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the April 11, 2018 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 



  
 

 

 
   

 

 
 

 

  
 

  

  
   

   

 
  

 

 
   

 

  
  

    

 

   
   

 

 

  
 

RESOLVED, that the April 11, 2018 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, 
approved. 

2018-19 Academic Calendar 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the 2018-19 calendar that was 
previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the 
following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2018-19 Academic Calendar, as presented to the Board of 
Trustees, and hereby is, approved. 

Amendments to Financial Policies and Procedures Manual 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the amendments to the Financial 
Policies and Procedures Manual that was previously circulated to the Trustees. The 
Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the amendments to the Financial Policies and Procedures Manual, as 
presented to the Board of Trustees, and hereby are, approved. 

2018-19 Employee Medical Insurance Renewal 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of a board subcommittee to approve the 
prospective employee medical insurance renewal plan for up to a 10% increase over 
current premium rates. 

RESOLVED, that a board subcommittee be, and hereby is, approved to vote on the 
medical insurance renewal plan for up to a 10% increase over current premium rates. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding Trudy Sandy’s membership to the Board of 
Trustees. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

At 7:38pm, Trustee Kabir Ahuja joined via videoconference from 25 Murray Street, New York, 
NY 10007. Seven Trustee members were present for the remainder of the meeting and present 
for voting purposes. 

Other Matters 

Ms. Rumph led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 



    
 

  

 

   

   
 

  

  
 

 

  

 

 
 

 

__________________________   
 

 

Mr. Elghanayan led a discussion regarding updates from the Development & Facilities 
Committee. 

Review of Policies and Code of Ethics 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the review of Policies and Code of Ethics. 

Discussion of Creating a New Board Committee 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the possibility of creating a new board 
committee. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion previewing the agenda items for the next Board of 
Trustees Meeting. 

Associate Board 

There were no updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:38 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 



 
 

 
 

 

  

  

   

 

  
  

 
  

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

   
 

 

    
 

 

  
 

 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING
 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
 

UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
 

HELD: June 6, 2018 


A meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Unity Preparatory Charter School of 
Brooklyn (the “School”), was held on June 6, 2018 commencing at 7:14 p.m., New York time.  
Nine Trustees were present at the beginning of the meeting; quorum was met.  Notice of the 
meeting was duly given to all Trustees, was posted on the School’s website and was sent to the 
New York Times, the New York Daily News and the Brooklyn Daily.  

The following Trustees were present at 432 Monroe Street, Brooklyn, NY 11221 at the 
beginning of the meeting: 

Franklin Amoo 

Michael Brown 

Jacob Elghanayan 

Carlyle Leach 

Sarah Olle 

Trudy Sandy 

The following Trustee was present at 130 Queen's Gate, Kensington, London SW7 5LE, 
UK and was linked by videoconference: 

James Ellsworth 

The following Trustee was present at 245 Bent Street Cambridge, MA 02141 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Caleb Hurst-Hiller 

The following Trustee was present at 125 Broad Street, New York, NY 10004 and was 
linked by videoconference: 

Marion Leydier 

The following Trustees was linked via video and audio but did not count towards 
quorum: 

Kabir Ahuja 

Kenneth Baum 



 

   

     
  

 

 
 

   

  

   

 
 

   

 

 
 

  
 

    

  
 

 

 

  
   

 

  

  

 
 

Also in attendance at the invitation of the Board were Jeannette Bander (via audio), 
Joshua Beauregard, Casey Burns, Chris Doscher, Sal Siddiqui, Lenworth Stephenson, and 
Michelle Rumph. 

Mr. Leach called the meeting to order and indicated that the purpose of the meeting was 
to consider the items set forth on the agenda previously distributed to the Trustees. 

Minutes of Prior Meeting – May 2, 2018 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the May 2, 2018 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the May 2, 2018 Board meeting minutes be, and hereby are, approved. 

Minutes of Executive Committee Meeting – May 11, 2018 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the minutes of the May 11, 2018 
meeting of the Board that were previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees 
present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the May 11, 2018 Executive Committee meeting minutes be, and 
hereby are, approved. 

Non-material Revisions to Charter as Approved by New York State Education Department on 
March 19, 2018 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the Non-material Revisions to Charter 
as Approved by New York State Education Department that was previously circulated to 
the Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the Non-material Revisions to Charter as Approved by New York 
State Education Department, as presented to the Board of Trustees, and hereby are, 
approved. 

2018-19 Budget 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of the 2018-19 budget that was 
previously circulated to the Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the 
following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the 2018-19 budget, as presented to the Board of Trustees, be and 
hereby is, approved. 

Partnership with Teachers College Reading and Writing Project in 2018-19 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of a partnership with Teachers College 
Reading and Writing Project in 2018-19. 



  

 

  
  

 

  
 

 

   
   

 

  
 

   
 

   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

   
  

  

RESOLVED, that the school is approved to partner with Teachers College Reading and 
Writing Project in 2018-19.  

Bus Transportation for Students Provided by Private Service in 2018-19 

The Trustees discussed and considered approval of a private bus option for students, as 
funded by the school, during the 2018-19 school year. The Trustees present unanimously 
adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the school is approved to engage with a private bus provider for the 
2018-19 school year. 

Re-election of James Ellsworth to the Board of Trustees with a Three-year Term 

Mr. Leach led a discussion regarding the proposed re-election of James Ellsworth to the 
Board of Trustees with a three-year term. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the 
following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that James Ellsworth be, and hereby is, elected to the Board of Trustees for 
a term that shall expire upon (i) the later of the School’s 2021 Annual Meeting and such time as 
such Trustee’s successor has been duly chosen and qualified, or (ii) such Trustee’s earlier 
incapacity, death, resignation or removal. 

Appointment of Officers to the Board of Trustees 

Mr. Leach led a discussion regarding the appointment of officers to the Board of 
Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that each of the individuals set forth below be, and hereby is, elected as an 
officer of the Board of Trustees in the position set forth opposite such person’s name for a term 
that shall expire upon (i) the later of the School’s 2019 Annual Meeting and such time as such 
Trustee’s successor has been duly chosen and qualified, or (ii) such Trustee’s earlier incapacity, 
death, resignation or removal. 

Name Position 

James Ellsworth Chairperson 

Jacob Elghanayan Vice Chairperson 

Trudy Sandy Secretary 

Marion Leydier Treasurer 

Consideration of Board of Trustees Committee Membership 

Mr. Leach led a discussion regarding changes to the membership of the committees of the 
Board of Trustees. The Trustees present unanimously adopted the following committee changes: 

RESOLVED, that each of Kabir Ahuja, Kenneth Baum, Michael Brown, Ashley Cotton, 
Jake Elghanayan, James Ellsworth, Marion Leydier, Sarah Olle, and Trudy Sandy be, and hereby 



 
  

    
  

  
 

 
  

 
  

   
  

  

       

 

 

  
  

 
  

    

  

 

  
 

    
 

  

  

   
 

is, elected to the Executive Committee until his or her successor has been duly chosen and 
qualified, or until such individual’s earlier incapacity, death, resignation or removal. 

RESOLVED, that each of Kabir Ahuja, Franklin Amoo, James Ellsworth, and Marion 
Leydier be, and hereby are, elected to the Audit & Finance Committee until his or her 
successor has been duly chosen and qualified, or until such individual’s earlier incapacity, 
death, resignation or removal.  

RESOLVED, that each of Kabir Ahuja, Kenneth Baum, and Sarah Olle be, and hereby is, 
elected to the Student Learning Committee until his or her successor has been duly chosen and 
qualified, or until such individual’s earlier incapacity, death, resignation or removal. 

RESOLVED, that each of Franklin Amoo, Michael Brown, Jake Elghanayan, and James 
Ellsworth be, and hereby are, elected to the Development & Finance Committee until his or her 
successor has been duly chosen and qualified, or until such individual’s earlier incapacity, death, 
resignation or removal. 

RESOLVED, that each of Michael Brown and Trudy Sandy be, and hereby are, elected 
to the Enrichment and Community Partnership Committee until his or her successor has been 
duly chosen and qualified, or until such individual’s earlier incapacity, death, resignation or 
removal. 

Other Matters 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding Sarah Olle’s membership to the Board of 
Trustees. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding the resignation from the board of Aryn 
Bowman, Caleb Hurst-Hiller, and Carlyle Leach. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding follow-up items from the prior meeting. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding 2017-18 Annual School-wide Goals and Key 
Benchmarks. 

Ms. Rumph led a discussion regarding updates from the Audit & Finance Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion regarding updates from the Student Learning 
Committee. 

Mr. Elghanayan led a discussion regarding updates from the Development & Facilities 
Committee. 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion of relevant school events for Board of Trustees 
Participation in 2017-18. 

Preview of Agenda Items for Next Meeting 

Mr. Beauregard led a discussion previewing the agenda items for the next Board of 
Trustees Meeting. 
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Associate Board 

Sal Siddiqui discussed updates from the Associate Board. 

Public Comment 

Lenworth Stephenson presented the services his firm provides during public comment. 

There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting adjourned at approximately 8:55 p.m., New York time.   

James Ellsworth 
Chairman 
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HGADHED@JFGGEDHEHJNEQGGLJ?FFD@JHGDJCNO@J<;T 
<<TJ<@JFDHJ<8WJoDFGUJwDEBJF@JLGEFGEHJSFGQFD 
CNOJ<;TJFDHJF@JVEDUJELG@EJGGJGQEJPGDHEDJGH 
CNOJ<@W 

KEGDGM 
FEFLLU 
OF@FHVF 
DGFJEH 

EWJpAGDEFEQJGGJ>LLJKLEMEDGFDUJNEQGGL@JFD
CNO@J<;JFDHJ<@J;JlGJED@ADEJGQFGJEVEDU 
@GAHEDGJSQGJFGGEDHEHJHFHGQJJDFHEJFDJFJCNOJ<; 
GDJCNOJ<@J@EQGGLJDEEEFVEHJFDHGDMFGFGDJFPGAG 
oDFGUJwDEBTJoDFGUJwDEBJEFLLEHTJEMFFLEHTJFDH 

>@JoDFGUJwDEBJEAEEEHEHJGQEJEDDGLLMEDGJGFDJEG 
HGDJKEGDGMFEFLLUJOF@FHVFDGFJEHJ@GAHEDG@JPU 
GDEJBEDEEDGFJEJBGFDGTJGQEJ@GDFGEJFE@JA@EHJFD 
:7<8R<=JSFLLJPEJEMBLGUEHJFJFFDJHGDJGQE 
:7<=R<vJ@EQGGLJUEFDW 

12324
 



@EDGJFDHGDMFGFGDJBFEYEG@JGGJEVEDU 
ELEMEDGFDUJ@EQGGLJFDJCNOJ<;JFDHJCNOJ<@W 
lQE@EJFDHGDMFGFGDJBFEYEG@JSEDEJFHHDE@@EHJGG 
GQEJBAFHFDEEJCGAD@ELGD@JFDHJwFDEDG 
CGGDHFDFGGD@JFDJEFEQJ@EQGGLWJlQEJFDHGDMFGFGD 
BFEYEG@JEGDGFFDEHJPDGEQADE@JGQFGJEABLFFDEH 
oDFGUJwDEBX@J@EQGGLJMGHELTJHLUED@JGQFG 
BDGVFHEHJFDHGDMFGFGDJDEJFDHFDJJoDFGUJwDEBX@ 
pBEDJqGA@EJEVEDG@TJFDHJFBBLFEFGFGD@JHGDJGQE
ABEGMFDJJ@EQGGLJUEFDWJCDJFHHFGFGDJGG 
ELEMEDGFDUJ@EQGGLJGAGDEFEQTJoDFGUJwDEBJFL@G 
EGDHAEGEHJGAGDEFEQJGGJEGMMADFGU 
GDJFDFCFGFGD@JFDHJFHGEDJ@EQGGL9@AMMED 
BDGJDFM@J@EDVFDJJQFJQJDAMPED@JGH 
KEGDGMFEFLLUJOF@FHVFDGFJEHJNGAHEDG@W 

HWJ=EHFFJ>HVEDGF@EMEDG@J;JoDFGUJwDEBJBLFEEH 
FHVEDGF@EMEDG@JFDJLGEFLJBDFDGJMEHFFTJ@AEQJF@ 
GQEJpADJlFMEJwDE@@TJFDHJ?FEEPGGYWJCD
FHHFGFGDTJGQEJ@EQGGLJBLFEEHJFJPFDDEDJGAG@FHE 
GHJGQEJ@EQGGLJHFEFLFGUJFDHJHF@GDFPAGEHJDA8 
HLUED@JGQDGAJQGAGJGQEJ@ADDGADHFDJ 
DEFJQPGDQGGH@W 

CDJ:7<8R<=TJDnJGHJ@GAHEDG@JSEDEJKDJLF@Q 
?FDJAFJEJ?EFDDED@WJlGJDEEDAFGJGQE@E 
@GAHEDG@TJoDFGUJwDEBJA@EHJGQEJHGLLGSFDJ 
@GDFGEJFE@I 

FWJpBEDJQGA@EJBDE@EDGFGFGD@JSEDEJMFHEJFD
PGGQJKDJLF@QJFDHJNBFDF@QJSFGQJGDFD@LFGFGD@ 
BDGVFHEHJFDJ?ALFDFTJ>DFPFEJFDHJ?DEDEQWJ 

PWJlQEJ@EQGGLJPDGAJQGJGDFD@LFGGD@JGGJFLL 
@EQGGLJHFFD@JFGGEDHEHW 

EWJ>LLJFDHGDMFGFGDFLJMFGEDFFL@JSEDEJBDGVFHEH 
FDJNBFDF@QJFDHJKDJLF@QW 

HWJ>HVEDGF@EMEDG@JSEDEJBLFEEHJFDJNBFDF@Q 
=EHFFTJ@AEQJF@JKLJOFFDFGW 

EWJ>BBLFEFGFGD@JFDHJFDHGDMFGFGDJFPGAGJGQE 
FBBLFEFGFGDJBDGEE@@JSEDEJBDGVFHEHJFDJNBFDF@Q
FDHJKDJLF@QJGDJGQEJ@EQGGLX@JSEP@FGEW 

oDFGUJwDEBJSF@J7W=JBEDEEDGFJEJBGFDG@JFPGVE 
GQEJEDDGLLMEDGJGFDJEGJHGDJKDJLF@QJ?FDJAFJE 
?EFDDED@WJlQEDEHGDETJGQEJ@EQGGLJSFLLJAGFLFCE 
@FMFLFDJ@GDFGEJFE@JHGDJ:7<=R<vJF@JFDJ:7<8R<=W 
lGJFDEDEF@EJGQEJDAMPEDJGHJK?? 
@GAHEDG@JDEEDAFGEHTJGQEJ@EQGGLJSFLLJSGDYJGG 
HEVELGBJMGDEJFDHJ@GDGDJEDJDELFGFGD@QFB@JSFGQ 
@EQGGL@JFDHJEGMMADFGURPF@EHJGDJFDFCFGFGD@ 
GQFGJ@EDVEJQFJQJBGBALFGFGD@JGHJK??J@GAHEDG@ 
FDHJDGDRKDJLF@QJ@BEFYFDJJHFMFLFE@W 

KDJLF@Q 
?FDJAF 
JE 
?EFDDED 
@ 

lGJDEEDAFGJNGAHEDG@JSFGQJOF@FPFLFGFE@Jm:<nJFD 
:7<8R<=kTJGQEJ@EQGGLJFMBLEMEDGEHJGQE 
HGLLGSFDJJEHHGDG@I 

FWJpAGDEFEQJGGJNBEEFFLJKHAEFGFGD
CGGDHFDFGGD@JFGJCNOJ<;JFDHJ<@ >@JoDFGUJwDEBJEAEEEHEHJGQEJEDDGLLMEDGJGFDJEG 
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NGAHEDG PWJpDJGFDJJBFDGDED@QFB@JSFGQJGQEJCGMMFGGEE
@JSFGQ GDJNBEEFFLJKHAEFGFGD 
OF@FPFLFG 
FE@ EWJCDHGDMFGFGDJGDJNBEEFFLJKHAEFGFGDJFDH 

CDGEDVEDGFGDJ@EDVFEE@JQFJQLFJQGEHJFDJFLL 
SDFGGEDJMFGEDFFL@JFDHJFHVEDGF@EMEDG@ 

HWJCDHGDMFGFGDJGDJNBEEFFLJKHAEFGFGDJFDH 
CDGEDVEDGFGDJNEDVFEE@JHF@GDFPAGEHJFGJFLLJVF@FG@T 
GBEDJQGA@E@JFDHJ@EQGGLJHFFD@W 

HGDJKEGDGMFEFLLUJOF@FHVFDGFJEHJ@GAHEDG@JPU 
<<J 
BEDEEDGFJEJBGFDG@TJGQEJ@GDFGEJFE@JA@EHJFD 
:7<8R<=JSFLLJPEJEMBLGUEHJFJFFDJHGDJGQE 
:7<=R<vJ@EQGGLJUEFDW 

SPGPFGTMFJEUUMHG[J_M+QHRJ,PPGTFkJ_QHkPG[ 

OE@EDFPEJIEGEDGFGDJKHHGDG@JFDJ:7<8R<= OE@EDFPEJIEGEDGFGDJwLFD@JFDJ:7<=R<vk 

lGJDEGFFDJKEGDGMFEFLLUJOF@FHVFDGFJEH 
@GAHEDG@TJGQEJ@EQGGLJSFLLJEGVEDJBDGJDFMJHEE@T 

KEGDGM ADFHGDMJEG@G@TJFDHJ@ABBLFE@JHGDJFDUJ@GAHEDG 
FEFLLU FDJDEEHWJ>@JFJ@MFLLJ@EQGGLJEGMMADFGUTJGQE 
OF@FHVF @EQGGLJ@GFHHJMFFDGFFD@JELG@EJDELFGFGD@QFB@ 
DGFJEH SFGQJHFMFLFE@JFDHJSFLLJFLEDGJLEFHED@QFBJGHJFDU 

@GAHEDGJGDJHFMFLUJSQGJDEEAFDE@JFHHFGFGDFL 
@ABBGDGW 

oDFGUJwDEBJFDGEDH@JGGJEMBLGUJGQEJ@FME 
@GDFGEJFE@JFDJ:7<=R:7<vJF@JSEJHFHJFDJGQEJBF@G 
@EQGGLJUEFDJGGJDEGFFDJKEGDGMFEFLLU 
OF@FHVFDGFJEHJ@GAHEDG@W 

KDJLF@Q 
?FDJAF 
JE 
?EFDDED 
@ 

lGJMEEGJGQEJDEEH@JGHJK??@TJoDFGUJwDEBJQF@ 
FHGBGEHJGQEJNQELGEDEHJCD@GDAEGFGD 
pP@EDVFGFGDJwDGGGEGLJmNCpwkJGGJ@ABBGDGJK??@
SFGQJMF@GEDFDJJEGDEJEGDGEDGJFDHJHEVELGBFDJ 
KDJLF@QJLFDJAFJEJBDGHFEFEDEUWJo@FDJJNCpwT
GEFEQED@JFMBLEMEDGJQFJQJEAFLFGUJFD@GDAEGFGDFL 
GEEQDFEAE@JFDELAHFDJJGQEJA@EJGHJVF@AFL@JFDH 
HEMGD@GDFGFGD@TJ@EFHHGLHEHJFD@GDAEGFGDT 
@GAHEDGJGGJ@GAHEDGJFDGEDFEGFGDJFDHJGFDJEGEH 
VGEFPALFDUJHEVELGBMEDGWJ>LLJoDFGUJwDEB 
GEFEQED@JDEEEFVEJGDFFDFDJJFDJGQF@JMEGQGHJFDH 
@GDAEGADEJGQEFDJEADDFEALAMJBLFDDFDJJFDH 
FD@GDAEGFGDJFDGADHJFG@JFMBLEMEDGFGFGDWJCD 
FHHFGFGDTJGQEJK??JCGGDHFDFGGDJBA@QE@JFDGG 
ELF@@DGGM@JGGJBDGVFHEJGFDJEGEHJFDH 
HFHHEDEDGFFGEHJ@ABBLEMEDGFLJFD@GDAEGFGD 
PF@EHJGDJEFEQJ@GAHEDGX@JKDJLF@QJBDGHFEFEDEUT 
DFDJFDJJHDGMJPEJFDDEDJK??@JGGJGQG@E 
HE@FJDFGEHJF@JHGDMEDJK??@WJNGAHEDG@JGQFG 
DEEHJFGJSFLLJFL@GJDEEEFVEJMGDEJFDGED@FVE 
FDGEDVEDGFGD@JFDHJBALLRGAGJ@EDVFEE@JHADFDJ 
ELEEGFVEJEGAD@E@JGGJMFDFMFCEJGQEJLG@@JGHJEGDE 
EGDGEDGJFD@GDAEGFGDFLJGFMEW 

lGJDEGFFDJKDJLF@QJ?FDJAFJEJ?EFDDED@TJoDFGU 
wDEBJFDGEDH@JGGJBDGVFHEJ@FMFLFDJ@EDVFEE@JFDJGQE 
EGMFDJJUEFDWJNGAHEDG@JSFLLJPEJEGDGFDAFLLU 
F@@E@@EHJGGJED@ADEJGQE@EJ@EDVFEE@JFDE 
BDGVFHFDJJGQEJFBBDGBDFFGEJLEVELJGHJ@ABBGDG 
FDHJ@ABBLEMEDGFLJFD@GDAEGFGDJDEEHEHJHGD 
GDJGFDJJ@GAHEDGJJDGSGQW 

oDFGUJwDEBJEMBLGU@JFJOFDEEGGDJGHJNABBGDG 
NEDVFEE@JSQGJEGGDHFDFGE@J@EDVFEE@JFDH 
@ABEDVF@E@JFD@GDAEGFGDJHGDJFLLJ@BEEFFLJ@GAHEDG 
BGBALFGFGD@FJFJNGEFFLJGGDYEDJSQGJBDGVFHE@ 
MEDGFLJQEFLGQJFDHJEGAD@ELFDJJ@EDVFEE@TJF 

62324
 



NGAHEDG 
@JSFGQ 
OF@FPFLFG 
FE@ 

?EFDDFDJJNABBGDGJCGGDHFDFGGDJSQGJGVED@EE@ 
FEFHEMFEJDEMEHFFGFGDJFDHJEDDFEQMEDGFJFDH 
GSGJ@BEEFFLJEHAEFGFGDJGEFEQED@JSQGJBDGVFHE 
FJPDGFHJDFDJEJGHJFDGED@FVEJ@ABBGDG@WJ 

?GDJGQG@EJ@GAHEDG@JFDJDEEHJGHJ@BEEFFL 
EHAEFGFGDJ@EDVFEE@TJoDFGUJwDEBJEMBLGU@JFD 
CDGEJDFGEHJCGRlEFEQFDJJMGHELJGGJMEEGJGQE 
JGFL@JGHJEFEQJ@GAHEDGH@JCDHFVFHAFLFCEH 
KHAEFGFGDJwLFDJmCKwkWJCDJGQE@EJELF@@DGGM@T 
JEDEDFLJEHAEFGFGDJGEFEQED@JSGDYJELG@ELUJSFGQ 
@BEEFFLJEHAEFGFGDJGEFEQED@JGGJBLFDJLE@@GD@T 
HFHHEDEDGFFGEJFD@GDAEGFGDJFDHJEVFLAFGEJ@GAHEDG 
LEFDDFDJWJlGJED@ADEJ@GAHEDGJLEFDDFDJJFDHJ@YFLL 
MF@GEDUTJGEFEQED@JAGFLFCEJFJVFDFEGUJGH 
FD@GDAEGFGDFLJHGDMFG@JFDELAHFDJJGEFM 
GEFEQFDJTJ@GFGFGDJGEFEQFDJTJBFDFLLELJGEFEQFDJT 
FDHJFLGEDDFGEJGEFEQFDJWJIGGQJGEFEQED@JMEEG 
DEJALFDLUJSFGQJGQEJOFDEEGGDJGHJNABBGDG 
NEDVFEE@JFDHJGQEJOFDEEGGDJGHJCADDFEALAMT 
CD@GDAEGFGDJFDHJ>@@E@@MEDGJGGJDEVFES 
@GAHEDGJBDGJDE@@JFDHJEVFLAFGEJGQE 
EHHEEGFVEDE@@JGHJGEFEQFDJJ@GDFGEJFE@JFDHJGQE 
@BEEFFLJEHAEFGFGDJBDGJDFMJGVEDFLLW 

lGJDEGFFDJNGAHEDG@JSFGQJOF@FPFLFGFE@JFDJGQE 
EGMFDJJUEFDTJoDFGUJwDEBJSFLLJBDGVFHEJFJSFHE 
DFDJEJGHJ@EDVFEE@JFDHJ@ABBGDG@TJ@FMFLFDJGG 
GQG@EJBDGVFHEHJFDJ:7<8R<=WJGQFLEJGQEJ@BEEFHFE 
MFDHFGEHJ@EDVFEE@JSFLLJPEJHEGEDMFDEHJPU 
@GAHEDGJCKwH@JFDHJFJDEVFESJGHJGDJGFDJ 
@GAHEDGJF@@E@@MEDG@TJSEJFDGFEFBFGEJVEDUJHES 
BDGJDFMJEQFDJE@WJwFDEDG@JSFLLJPEJYEBG 
FDHGDMEHJGHJ@GAHEDGJBDGJDE@@JFGJFLLJGFME@ 
GQDGAJQJHDEEAEDGJEGDHEDEDEE@JFDHJDEBGDG@W 
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EFGHIJKKJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPH 
WGGHXGXPF 
CDEFGEHIJ789:;9:7<=J>J?F@GJABHFGEHIJ789;79:7<= 

CEBDDGJEFFGHE@JIGJGEFEFEDJFGHJFHJIGI@GDFGDDJ@GFKKIGHL 

YFOGHZTGXPFOJ[PHJTPQ\MSGXF]JGUSJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFVJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MSO 

LUNHGSHJOTUPPMOJQZOGJTPQ\MSGSJGUSJGN^MSOJGXGMSVJ_`Kab_`KcJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJNFV 

WVQXFXOGHNGPHJWGGHXGXPFJGPJHS\PHGJTUNF]SOJXFJGSNTUSHJNFVJNVQXFXOGHNGPHJOGN[[XF] 

VZHXF]JGUSJ_`Kab_`KcJOTUPPMJISNHdJeMSNOSJ\HPfXVSJGUSJ[ZMMJGXQSJSgZXfNMSFGJhiREjJP[ 
OGN[[JPFJkZFSJl`mJ_`KanJGUSJiREJ[PHJNFIJVS\NHGSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFS 

l`mJ_`KcnJGUSJiREJ[PHJNVVSVJOGN[[J[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`KcnJNFVJGUS 

iREJP[JOGN[[JNVVSVJXFJFSoMIJTHSNGSVJ\POXGXPFOJ[HPQJkZMIJKmJ_`KaJGUHPZ]UJkZFSJl`mJ_`Kc 

ZOXF]JGUSJGN^MSOJ\HPfXVSVd 

KdJLMNOOHPPQJRSNTUSHJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS 

MNOJCPF@@DDDJ MNOJCPF@@DDDJ MNOJCPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JDG 
Q9;79<8 

NEFEFED@ 
REBFDGEHJ89<9<8 

NEFEFED@JMIPPIGH 
TFEFGGJUD@IGIDG@ 

SJQ9;79<= 89<9<8JSJQ9;79<= 

Z: :: :7 

_dJWVQXFXOGHNGPHJePOXGXPFJWGGHXGXPFJRN^MS
 

MNO 
YHJIGI@GDFGI\E 
UD@IGIDG@JDG 
Q9;79<8 

<; 

MNO 
YHJIGI@GDFGDD@ 
REBFDGEHJ89<9<8 
SJQ9;79<= 

7 

MNO 
YHJIGI@GDFGDD@ 
MIPPIGHJTFEFGG 
UD@IGIDG@J89<9<8 
SJQ9;79<= 

7 

MNOJCPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JYHHEH 
IGJZEXJUD@IGIDG@ 
89<9<8JYJQ9;79<= 

8 

MNO 
YHJIGI@GDFGDD@ 
YHHEHJIGJZEX 
UD@IGIDG@J89<9<8 
YJQ9;79<= 

Z 

MNOJDK 
CPF@@DDDJ 
NEFEFED@JDG 
Q9;7<= 

Z[ 

MNO 
YHJIGI@GDFGI\E 
UD@IGIDG@JDG 
Q9;79<= 

<8 
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3.	Tell	your	school's	story

Charter	schools	may	provide	additional	information	in	this	section	of	the	Annual
Report	about	their	respective	teacher	and	administrator	attrition	rates	as	some
teacher	or	administrator	departures	do	not	reflect	advancement	or	movement	within
the	charter	school	networks.	Schools	may	provide	additional	detail	to	reflect	a
teacher’s	advancement	up	the	ladder	to	a	leadership	position	within	the	network	or
an	administrator’s	movement	to	lead	a	new	network	charter	school.
	

(No	response)

4.	Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees	receive	clearance
through	the	NYSED	Office	of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)
prior	to	employment.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are	required	to
maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all
students,	charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of
individuals	who	have	been	denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been
terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for	clearance	in	the	TEACH
system.		
	
Have	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	system?
	

Yes

5.	For	perspective	or	current	employees	whose	clearance	has	been	denied,	have	you
terminated	their	employment	and	removed	them	from	the	TEACH	system?

Not	Applicable

Thank	you

http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/
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Entry	12	Uncertified	Teachers
Last	updated:	07/30/2018

FTE	Count	of	All	Teachers
(Certified	and	Uncertified)	as	of
6/30/18

49

FTE	Count	of	All	Certified
Teachers	as	of	6/30/18

13

Instructions	for	Reporting	Percent	of	Uncertified	Teachers
The	table	below	is	reflective	of	the	information	collected	through	the	online	portal	for
compliance	with	New	York	State	Education	Law	2854(3)(a-1)	for	teaching	staff
qualifications.	Enter	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers	in	each
column.	For	example,	a	school	with	20	full	time	teachers	and	5	half	time	teachers
would	have	an	FTE	count	of	22.5.	If	more	than	one	column	applies	to	a	particular
teacher,	please	select	one	column	for	the	FTE	count.	Please	do	not	include
paraprofessionals,	such	as	teacher	assistants.

FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	on	6/30/18,	and	each	uncertified	teacher	should	be
counted	only	once.

FTE	Count

1.	Total	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	(6-30-18) 36

2.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	at	least	three	years
of	elementary,	middle	or	secondary	classroom	teaching
experience	(6-30-18)

23

3.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	are	tenured	or
tenure	track	college	faculty	(6-30-18) 0

4.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	two	years	of	Teach
for	America	experience	(6-30-18) 1

5.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	with	exceptional
business,	professional,	artistic,	athletic,	or	military
experience	(6-30-18)

0

6.	FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit	into	any
of	the	prior	four	categories	(6-30-18) 12

Thank	you.
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UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
2018-19 Academic Calendar for Middle School Families

Updated 6/17/18
Days this month: 17 Total: 17 Days this month: 22 Total: 39

July August September October
M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F

2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12

16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19
23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26
30 31 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

7/2-7/6: School closed 8/27-8:28: 6th grade student orientation 8/31-9/3: No school - Labor Day 10/8: No school - Columbus Day (Indigenous People's Day)
7/9-7/27 : Summer Academy 8/29: New 7th & 8th grade student orientation 9/4: No school for students - staff only
7/30-8/10: School closed 8/30: No school for students - staff only 9/5: First day of school

8/31-9/3: No school - Labor Day 9/27: Family Orientation, 6:00pm*
 9/28: No school for students - staff only

Days this month: 17 Total: 56 Days this month: 15 Total: 71 Days this month: 18 Total: 89 Days this month: 15 Total: 104

November December January February
M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22
26 27 28 29 30 31 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28

11/6: No school for students - staff only 12/6-12/7: Family Conferences* 12/24-1/4: No school - Winter Break 2/18-2/22: No school - Mid-Winter Break
11/12: No school - Veteran's Day 12/21:  Student early dismissal 1/7: Students return
11/20: End of Tri-I; Student early dismissal 12/24-1/4: No school - Winter Break 1/21: No school - MLK Jr. Day
11/21-11/23: No school - Thanksgiving Break

Days this month: 21 Total: 125 Days this month: 16 Total: 141 Days this month: 22 Total: 163 Days this month: 17 Total: 180

March April May June
M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F

1 1 2 3 4 P 1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7
4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21
18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 29 30 27 28 29 30 31
3/15: End of Tri-II; Student early dismissal 4/3: Lottery for 2019-20 School Year 5/2-5/3: Math State Exam 6/3: 8th Grade Science Written Exam
3/28-3/29: Family Conferences* 4/3-4/4: ELA State Exam 5/6-5/10: Spirit Week 6/14: End of Tri-III; Last Day of Classes

4/8-5/17: NYSESLAT testing window 5/9-5/10:  Grade-level field trips 6/17-6/20: Roundtable presentations*
4/19 - 4/26: No school - Spring Break 5/22-5/31: 8th Grade Science Performance Exam 6/18-6/25: Regents exams

5/27: No school - Memorial Day 6/21: End of year field trips
6/21: Last day of school
6/24: Make-up Roundtable presentations and 
8th grade dance
6/25: 8th grade graduation

KEY Weekly School Hours Weekly Middle School Hours for Students
First and Last Days of School  Monday, Tuesday, & Thursday: 7:30am - 4:30pm
End of Trimester Wednesday: 7:30am - 1:15pm
No School for Students Friday: 7:30am - 3:35pm
State Assessment and Roundtable Dates
Student Orientation
Family Conferences and Orientation

*Note: The events with asterisks represent Mission-Critical Days for parents.  In the spirit of being fully united with families in support of our students, 100% of families are expected to be in
attendance during these events.

Please see our website, http://www.unityprep.org, for calendar updates and further details on our 2018-2019 school year calendar. 

Unity Preparatory Charter School of Brooklyn - 432 Monroe Street, 3rd Floor, Brooklyn, NY 11221 - 718-455-5046 (P) 718-455-5049 (F)



UNITY PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL OF BROOKLYN
2018-19 Academic Calendar for High School Families

Updated 7/23/18
Days this month: 17 Total: 17 Days this month: 22 Total: 39

July August September October
M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F

2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12

16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19
23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26
30 31 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

7/2-7/13: School closed 8/14-8/15: Mandatory Student and Family Meetings 8/31-9/4: No school - Labor Day 10/8: No school - Columbus Day (Indigenous People's Day)
7/17: Summer Reading HW pick-up 8/16-8/17: Regents Exams 9/5: First day of school 10/10: PSAT for 11th grade only
7/17-8/15: Summer Academy 8/28-8/29: New building tours 9/27: Family Orientation, 6:00pm*                                10/30-11/1: Midterm (Unit) Exams (regular class schedule)

8/31-9/3: No school - Labor Day 9/28: No school for students

Days this month: 17 Total: 56 Days this month: 15 Total: 71 Days this month: 18 Total: 89 Days this month: 15 Total: 104

November December January February
M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22
26 27 28 29 30 31 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28

10/30-11/1: Midterm (Unit) Exams (regular class schedule)12/18-12/20: Family Conferences* 12/24-1/4: No school - Winter Break 2/18-2/22: No school - Mid-Winter Break
11/6: No school for students 12/18-12/20: Roundtable presentations 1/7: Students return
11/12: No school - Veterans Day 12/21: Make-up Roundtable presentations 1/21: No school - MLK Jr. Day
11/20: Student early dismissal 12/24-1/2: No school - Winter Break 1/22-1/25: Regents Exams/S1 Final Exams
11/20:  End of First Quarter 1/25: End of First Semester
11/21-11/23: No school - Thanksgiving Break

Days this month: 20 Total: 124 Days this month: 16 Total: 140 Days this month: 22 Total: 162 Days this month: 18 Total: 180

March April May June
M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F M T W T F

1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7
4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 6 7 8 9 10 10 11 12 13 14

11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21
18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28

25 26 27 28 29 29 30 27 28 29 30 31
3/6: SAT I Exam for 11th grade only 4/3: Lottery for 2019-20 School Year 5/6: AP Environmental Science Exam (PM) 6/3: Global History & Geography II Regents (proposed)
3/15: No school for students 4/17-4/18: Family Conferences* 5/8: AP Literature Exam (AM) 6/17: End of Second Semester
3/25-3/27: Midterm (Unit) Exams (regular class schedule) 4/19-4/26: No school - Spring Break 5/10: AP U.S. History Exam (AM) 6/18-6/25: Regents exams/S2 Final Exams
3/29: End of 3rd Quarter 4/30-5/2: Mock Regents Exams 5/10: AP CS Principles Exam (PM) 6/27: No school for students

5/16: AP World History Exam (AM)
5/27: No school - Memorial Day

KEY Weekly School Hours Weekly High School Hours for Students
First and Last Days of School Monday through Thursday: 8:00am - 3:30pm
End of Quarter/Semester Friday: 8:00am - 1:00pm
No School for Students
Assessment Dates
Student Orientation
Family Conferences

*Note: The events with asterisks represent Mission-Critical Days for parents.  In the spirit of being fully united with families in support of our students, 100% of families are expected to be in
attendance during these events.
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